




  
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
February 10, 2015 

THE REGULAR MEETING CONVENES AT 2:00 P.M.  
IN THE GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM  

AT THE COURTHOUSE IN LOVINGSTON 
I. Call to Order 

A. Moment of Silence 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Resolution Recognizing the Service of the Honorable J. Michael Gamble (R2015-07) 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

A. Resolution – R2015-08 Minutes for Approval 
B. Resolution – R2015-09 COR Refunds  

                            
IV. Public Comments and Presentations 

A. Public Comments 
B. Presentation – FY14 Financial Audit Report -Robinson, Farmer, Cox Assoc. (D. Foley) 
C. Presentation – Piedmont Virginia Community College (F. Friedman) 
D. VDOT Report 

1. VDOT Request to Abandon & Add Segments of Route 665, Roseland Road  
   (R2015-06 Deferred) 

2. Citizen Request to Abandon a Portion of Route 641 (R. McSwain) 
3. Ariel Drive Surface Treatment Request 
 

V. New Business/ Unfinished Business  
A. Emergency Services Council Interest Free Loan Request – Wintergreen Fire Dept. 
B. Remuneration of NC Broadband Authority Board Members (R2015-10) 
C. Courthouse Project Phase II 

1. Expense Reimbursement Resolution (R2015-11) 
2. Energy Audit Proposal – Architectural Partners 
3. Authorization to Execute A/E Contract for Final Design & Construction Management  

  (R2015-12) 
D. Dominion Request for Land Use Meeting with Nelson County Staff 
E. Solid Waste Collection Roll-Off Truck & Bucket Truck Purchase 

 
VI. Reports, Appointments, Directives, and Correspondence 

A. Reports 
 1.  County Administrator’s Report 

2.  Board Reports 
B. Appointments  

1.   Letter re: Jefferson Area Disability Services Board  
C. Correspondence 

1.   Nelson Co. Electoral Board – Repairs to Lovingston Voting Precinct Parking Area 
D. Directives 

 
VII. Adjournment – The Evening Session Has Been Cancelled 



RESOLUTION R2015-07 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE HONORABLE J. MICHAEL GAMBLE 
March 01, 1991 - February 28, 2015 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2015, the Honorable J. Michael Gamble officially retires from 
service as Judge of the Circuit Court of the Twenty-fourth Judicial District of Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Gamble is a life-long resident of Virginia, a graduate of Nelson County High 
School (1967), earned his Bachelor’s degree from the University of Virginia (1971) and received 
his J.D. Degree from the University of Virginia College of Law (1974); and 

WHEREAS, Judge Gamble received a U. S. Army ROTC Commission in 1971; served three 
months active duty and six years in active reserves (1971-1978), highest rank, Captain; served as 
a Company Commander for two years; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Gamble practiced law in Amherst, Virginia, from 1974 to 1991, as a 
member of the firm of Pendleton & Gamble; he served as President of the Lynchburg Bar 
Association; President of the Amherst-Nelson Bar Association; Chairman of the Sixth District 
Disciplinary Committee of Virginia State Bar; Special Justice, Substitute General District Court 
Judge; Assistant Commissioner of Accounts; Town Attorney for Town of Amherst; School 
Board Attorney for Amherst County; Mentor Judge Advisory Committee; Fifth Regional 
Representative to Executive Committee of Judicial Conference of Virginia; Chairman of 
Virginia Model Jury Instructions Committee; and Chairman of Judicial Conduct Committee of 
Judicial Conference; Member of Boyd-Graves Committee, and Chairman of Subcommittee on 
Commissioners in Chancery of Task Force of Judicial Functions, Commission on Virginia Court; 
and 

WHEREAS, Judge Gamble was appointed to the Circuit Court bench on March 01, 1991 and 
over the past twenty-four years Judge Gamble has presided over numerous cases where he has 
exhibited his knowledge, dedication and professionalism, all of which will be greatly missed; 
and 

II



WHEREAS, Judge Gamble is an active and important part of his community and profession as a 
member and former chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Emmanuel United Methodist 
Church of Amherst; past President of the Amherst Rotary Club, and member of the Amherst 
Jaycees; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper that the Nelson County Board of Supervisors recognizes the 
Honorable J. Michael Gamble for his many years of service and commitment to the citizens of 
Virginia, and to congratulate him on his well-deserved retirement as Judge, with best wishes for 
many years of happiness and contentment, 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, that The Board of Supervisors does hereby go on record as recognizing the 
Honorable J. Michael Gamble on his retirement from service from the Circuit Court of the 
Twenty-fourth Judicial District of Virginia. 
 
 
  
Adopted:  February 10, 2015    Attest: _______________________, Clerk 
                                                                                 Nelson County Board Of Supervisors 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION R2015-08 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
(January 13, 2015) 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the minutes of said 
Board’s meeting conducted on January 13, 2015 be and hereby are approved and 
authorized for entry into the official record of the Board of Supervisors meetings. 

Approved: February 10, 2015 Attest:_________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

III A



January 13, 2015 
 

1 
 

Virginia:  
 
AT A REGULAR MEETING of the Nelson County Board of Supervisors at 2:00 p.m. in the 
General District Courtroom located on the third floor of the Nelson County Courthouse, in 
Lovingston Virginia. 
 
Present:   Constance Brennan, Central District Supervisor - Chair 

Allen M. Hale, East District Supervisor 
Thomas H. Bruguiere, Jr. West District Supervisor 

  Larry D. Saunders, South District Supervisor – Vice Chair  
 Stephen A. Carter, County Administrator 

Candice W. McGarry, Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk 
Debra K. McCann, Director of Finance and Human Resources 

             
Absent: Thomas D. Harvey, North District Supervisor  
 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
Ms. Brennan called the meeting to order at 2:08 PM, with all Supervisors present to 
establish a quorum. 
 

A. Moment of Silence 
B. Pledge of Allegiance – Mr. Hale led the pledge of Allegiance 

 
I. NCHS FFA Agronomy Team and Farm Business Management Team Ring 

Presentation 
 
Ms. Brennan noted how proud the Board was of the two teams and that they appreciated the 
students’ and parents’ attendance of the meeting. She and Mr. Saunders then presented the 
National Runner Up rings as follows: 
 
Farm Business Management Team: 
 
Philip Saunders, Noah Fitzgerald, Zack Barnes, Deighton McClellan, and Coach Ed 
McCann. 
 
Agronomy Team: 
 
Jaime Conner, Ruth Fitzgerald, Colin Morris, Patrick Saunders, Jacob Saunders, and Coach 
Scott Massie  
 
Ms. Ruth Fitzgerald spoke on behalf of the FFA students and thanked the Board for their 
support in sending them to the FFA Convention. She noted that their support was greatly 
appreciated and that the rings would be a reminder of this.   
 



January 13, 2015 
 

2 
 

FFA members then presented the Board, Clerk and Deputy Clerk with miniature Louisville 
Slugger bats as a token of their appreciation.  
 
II. Reorganization of the Board 

 
Mr. Carter noted that State law required that the Board conduct an annual organizational 
meeting in the first regular meeting of the year that included the election of a Chair, Vice 
Chair, and the establishment of a regular meeting schedule. 
 

A. Election of Chair 
 
Mr. Carter opened the floor for nominations for Chair and Ms. Brennan nominated Mr. 
Larry Saunders. Mr. Hale seconded the motion and there being no other nominations, the 
nominations for Chair were closed. Supervisors then voted (3-0-1) by roll call vote to 
approve the nomination with Mr. Saunders abstaining; electing Mr. Saunders as Chair for 
2015. 
 

B. Election and Appointment of Vice-Chair 
 
Mr. Carter opened the floor for nominations for Vice Chair and Mr. Bruguiere nominated 
Mr. Allen Hale. Ms. Brennan seconded the motion and there being no other nominations, the 
nominations for Vice Chair were closed. Supervisors then voted unanimously (4-0) by roll 
call vote to approve the nomination and electing Mr. Hale as Vice Chair for 2015. 
 

C. Resolution- R2015-01 Annual Meeting of the Board  
 
Mr. Hale moved to approve resolution RR2015-01, Annual Meeting of the Board. He noted 
that the resolution established rules, made appointments, and denoted the regular meeting 
schedule. He advised that the following appointments were listed in the resolution for 
approval: 
 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission:   Allen M. Hale 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission:   Tim Padalino  
Director of Emergency Services:     Thomas D. Harvey 
Emergency Services Coordinator:     Jaime O. Miller 
Piedmont Workforce Network Council:    Larry D. Saunders 
Clerk to the Nelson County Board of Supervisors:   Stephen A. Carter 
Deputy Clerk to the Nelson County Board of Supervisors:  Candice W. McGarry 
Zoning Administrator:      Tim Padalino  
Hazardous Materials Coordinator:     Jaime O. Miller 
Thomas Jefferson EMS Council:     Jaime O. Miller 
Nelson County EMS Council:     Thomas H. Bruguiere, Jr. 
Thomas Jefferson Community Criminal Justice Board:  Constance Brennan 
Nelson County Social Services Board:    Constance Brennan 
Nelson County Planning Commission:    Larry D. Saunders 
Jefferson Area Disabilities Services Board:    Kelly Hughes  



January 13, 2015 
 

3 
 

Mr. Hale then noted that the meeting schedule was the same as in 2014, with a monthly 
meeting on the second Tuesday at 2pm, and then reconvening at 7pm.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere seconded the motion and there being no further discussion, Supervisors voted 
unanimously (4-0) by roll call vote to approve the motion and the following resolution was 
adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-01 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

ANNUAL MEETING 
 

JANUARY 13, 2015 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the applicable provisions of §15.2-1416 of the Code of VA and 
Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Code of the County of Nelson, VA, the Nelson County Board of 
Supervisors conducts an annual organizational meeting at the Board’s first meeting in 
January of each year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, matters to be determined by the Board of Supervisors in addition to the 
appointment of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman include the establishment of a schedule of 
regular and, as applicable, special meetings, the establishment of rules of order, the 
establishment of (a) meeting agenda(s), and the establishment of Board appointments, 
including a Clerk and Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors, a Zoning Administrator and 
a Hazardous Material Coordinator.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors as 
follows: 
 
Regular meetings of the Board of Supervisors shall be conducted during Calendar Year 2015 
in the General District Courtroom located in the Nelson County Courthouse in Lovingston, 
VA on the second Tuesday of each month, beginning at 2:00 p.m., and reconvening 
thereafter at 7:00 p.m.  Should the regular meetings fall on any legal holiday, the meeting 
shall be held on the next following regular business day, without action of any kind by the 
Board; unless otherwise cancelled. Should the Chairman or Vice Chairman (if the Chairman 
is unable to act) find and declare that weather or other conditions are such that it is 
hazardous for members to attend regular meetings; the meeting(s) will be continued on the 
following Tuesday. Such finding shall be communicated to the members, staff, and the press 
as promptly as possible.  All hearings and other matters previously advertised shall be 
conducted at the continued meeting(s) and no further advertisement is required. 
 
Special meetings of the Board of Supervisors may be convened from time to time, as 
determined by the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Code of VA and the Code of the County of Nelson, VA. 
In accordance with the Code of the County of Nelson, VA, Robert’s Rules of Order, shall be 
observed as the rules for conducting the business of the Board of Supervisors and the agenda 



January 13, 2015 
 

4 
 

for all meetings of the Board of Supervisors shall be established by the Clerk of the Board in 
consultation with the Chairman. 
 
Board of Supervisors appointments for Calendar Year 2015 shall be as follows: 
 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission:   Allen M. Hale 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission:   Tim Padalino  
Director of Emergency Services:     Thomas D. Harvey 
Emergency Services Coordinator:     Jaime O. Miller 
Piedmont Workforce Network Council:    Larry D. Saunders 
Clerk to the Nelson County Board of Supervisors:   Stephen A. Carter 
Deputy Clerk to the Nelson County Board of Supervisors:  Candice W. McGarry 
Zoning Administrator:      Tim Padalino  
Hazardous Materials Coordinator:     Jaime O. Miller 
Thomas Jefferson EMS Council:     Jaime O. Miller 
Nelson County EMS Council:     Thomas H. Bruguiere, Jr. 
Thomas Jefferson Community Criminal Justice Board:  Constance Brennan 
Nelson County Social Services Board:    Constance Brennan 
Nelson County Planning Commission:    Larry D. Saunders 
Jefferson Area Disabilities Services Board:    Kelly Hughes  
 
 
III. Consent Agenda 
 
Ms. Brennan moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented and Mr. Hale seconded the 
motion. There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (4-0) by roll call 
vote to approve the motion and the following resolutions were adopted: 
 

A. Resolution – R2015-02 Minutes For Approval 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-02 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
(November 13, 2014 and December 9, 2014) 

 
RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the minutes of said Board’s 
meeting conducted on November 13, 2014 and December 9, 2014 be and hereby are 
approved and authorized for entry into the official record of the Board of Supervisors 
meetings. 
 

B. Resolution – R2015-03 FY14-15 Budget Amendment 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-03 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AMENDMENT OF FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 BUDGET 
NELSON COUNTY, VA 

January 13, 2015 



January 13, 2015 
 

5 
 

       
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Nelson County that the Fiscal Year 
2014-2015 Budget be hereby amended as follows:      
      
      
 I.  Appropriation of Funds (General Fund)     
        
  Amount Revenue Account (-)     Expenditure Account (+)   
   $997.00  3-100-001899-0025    4-100-091030-5690  
             
 II.  Transfer of Funds (General Fund)     
         
  Amount Credit Account (-) Debit Account (+)  
   $20,000.00  4-100-999000-9905 4-100-011010-3151  
 
       

C. Resolution – R2015-04 COR Refunds 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-04                    
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE REFUNDS 
 
RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the following refunds, as 
certified by the Nelson County Commissioner of Revenue and County Attorney pursuant to 
§58.1-3981 of the Code of Virginia, be and hereby are approved for payment. 
 
Amount Category      Payee 
 
$663.84 2014 Disabled Veteran Refund   Mr. Samuel C. Woodson 
         2936 James River Rd. 
         Wingina, VA 24599 

 
V. Public Comments and Presentations 

A. Public Comments 
 
1. James Ford 
 
Mr. Ford noted he appreciated the support of those Supervisors that opposed the Atlantic 
Coast Pipeline. He referenced the upcoming Dominion meeting and noted that he hoped the 
other Supervisors got on board and opposed it. Mr. Ford noted that the pipeline would pass 
through the Davis Creek area which had been scarred in the past. He noted that the large 
right of ways would cause wind tunnels and would decimate the forests. He reiterated that 
he was opposed to the pipeline and he hoped that Mr. Bruguiere and Mr. Saunders would 
also oppose it.  
 



January 13, 2015 
 

6 
 

Mr. Saunders clarified that he did not oppose the resolution of opposition adopted by the 
Board, rather he opposed the date it was set to be voted on.   
 

B. Presentation – Report on Presentation to FERC by Nelson Residents 
 
Ms. Janice Jackson addressed the Board and noted that over the past month, two groups of 
citizens from Nelson County had gone to Washington D.C. to meet with the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) and representatives from these groups would present to the 
Board.  
 
Ms. Jackson stated that it was important that citizens took their time to do this and they met 
with FERC Commissioner, Norman Bay, and current FERC Chair Cheryl LaFleur. She 
added that five (5) citizens gave presentations, five (5) citizens did the research, and all five 
(5) districts were represented. She noted that they all felt very strongly that the pipeline was 
not good for the County. She added that while she was not a personally affected landowner, 
she was volunteering time to oppose it. 
 
Ms. Jackson then noted that she would share the highlights of her group’s presentation. She 
then noted that the Commissioner was most interested in the County’s steep slopes and 
landslide propensity, the Virginia law of Eminent Domain, and the potential impact to 
landowners and the impact to the County’s historical and cultural treasures.  
 
Ms. Jackson noted that as to the Historic and Cultural piece, there was tremendous potential 
impact on African American communities’ burial grounds, Native American archeological 
sites, and the Norwood-Wingina Historic District.  She noted that these impacts were 
required to be addressed by Dominion and that their review process was underway which 
was an opportunity for Nelson residents to be a consulting party. She added that according 
to the Department of Historic Resources, there were 178 archeological sites and 802 
architectural resources identified in Nelson County. She acknowledged that the number that 
were on the proposed route was unknown, however it would affect the entire route. 
 
Ms. Jackson then showed pinpoints on a map of the pipeline route that depicted areas where 
there were known African American and slave cemeteries, Native American sites, and 
historic resources. Ms. Jackson added that there have been significant archeological digs in 
Wingina and that it was estimated that only 10% of what was there had been dug and there 
was an estimated 62 sites per square mile. She noted that the Norwood-Wingina Historical 
District also had a series of cemeteries. Ms. Jackson then noted the St. Hebron Church 
cemeteries and others that the pipeline would be going through. She added that some of 
these lots dated back to 1887.   
 
In conclusion, Ms. Jackson noted that Dominion was supposed to pick a route that impacted 
the least of these resources and they had not done that. 
 
 
 
 
 



January 13, 2015 
 

7 
 

 
 
 
Reverend James Rose addressed the Board and noted that his family had owned land in the 
Wingina area dating back to the late 1800s. He noted that his family had held onto it and 
they wanted to keep it in the family and did not want Dominion to disturb part of it. 
 
Reverend Rose noted that the pipeline was concentrated in the African American 
community in Wingina and he reiterated the historical sites it would impact. He noted that 
he did not think it was right that the pipeline would come in and affect the same families. He 
reiterated that St. Hebron Church was the oldest African American church in the County and 
Dominion proposed to run the pipeline behind it. He added that the area was opposed to it 
and was doing their best to fight it. He noted that it was his right to fight for keeping his land 
in his family and added that there was a family cemetery and a spring there that would be 
affected. He noted that one of the lots of his family property had two house on it and the 
pipeline was proposed to run through it.  He added that he had family that may want to come 
back there to build one day. 
 
Ms. Susan McSwain then addressed the Board and noted she would report on one of 
Commissioner Day's topics of interest: landslide propensity. 
 
Ms. McSwain reported that the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration has 
identified four (4) areas for debris avalanches (landslides) which were downhill flows of 
rock, trees, and other debris and one of these was areas was the Appalachians and eastern 
mountains of the Blue Ridge. She noted that once an avalanche began, an entire slope could 
move at once and these occurred on steep slopes where highly fractured bedrock was 
covered by shallow soils that become saturated by heavy rains or snow melt. She stated that 
a U.S. Geological survey noted 3,500 to 4,500 tons were in those during Hurricane Camille 
where 172,000 pounds or 86 tons flowed per second. She added that after Camille, there 
were 186 large debris scars counted with smaller ones being too many to count. She then 
noted that as debris avalanches went downhill, they ended up in streams, ravines and 
riverbeds; widening these along the way. She then noted that the Virginia Department of 
Mines, Mineral, and Energy projects that rain events that can trigger these occur in Virginia 
every 10-15 years. Ms. McSwain then noted that these occur in areas prone to mass 
movement and she quoted the Virginia Department of Emergency Management as follows:  
“soil movement associated with these landslides can destabilize the structural supports of 
pipelines possibly leading to pipeline ruptures. In Virginia, landslides can be expected to 
occur in conjunction with other hazardous events such as flooding or earthquakes which also 
pose independent risks to pipelines.” 
 
Ms. McSwain then noted that this area was so vulnerable to these events due to a weather 
phenomenon called orographic lifting, which was where heavy clouds from tropical 
moisture become trapped against the Blue Ridge Mountains and dump a lot of rain. She 
noted that this frequency coupled with steep slopes and unstable soils make events like 
Hurricane Camille in 1969 likely to happen again and she noted that in 1995, there was a 
similar event in Madison County.  
 



January 13, 2015 
 

8 
 

Ms. McSwain also reported that the building of the pipeline would clear cut a swath that 
may be as wide as 150 ft. in some sections and she compared this to the Lynchburg Bypass, 
which is 141 ft. wide. She added that after it was completed, a 75 ft. right of way would 
remain free of trees. She noted that after having been severely affected in previous landslide 
events, both Davis Creek and Eades Hollow were vulnerable to reoccurrence. 
 
Ms. McSwain then referenced a letter from the Thomas Jefferson Soil and Water 
Conservation District that had been distributed and read the following quote: “While the 
land is extremely vulnerable in its natural, forested state, land disturbance exacerbates these 
problems significantly.” She then noted that they reference a landslide that occurred due to 
land disturbance in 2003 where a snow tube park had been installed in Wintergreen and the 
grass that was planted to stabilize it was inadequate. Ms. McSwain then noted that the 
TJSWC requested that an alternate route be chosen for the pipeline that avoided the sensitive 
landscape, geology, and terrain that were characteristic of the proposed route through 
Nelson County. 
 
Ms. McSwain then reported that Dominion had EPA violations in West Virginia on their G-
151 pipeline and had an active consent order to clean up 8 streams and repair multiple slopes 
that had slipped. She concluded by noting that this pipeline was much smaller than the one 
proposed and traversed less steep areas than that of Nelson. She added that Nelson was the 
most mountainous county in Virginia east of the Blue Ridge and therefore is the most 
inappropriate location in Central Virginia for the pipeline. 
 
Ms. Joanna Salidis addressed the Board and noted that she, James Bolton, and Ernie Reed 
had presented information to Ms. LaFleur, Chair of FERC. 
 
Ms. Salidis reported that they discussed alternative routes that would cause less harm and 
noted that Dominion was required to look at this. She reported that FERC heavily weighed 
the use of eminent domain and she noted that they were pleased to tell them that 77% of 
affected landowners had not given Dominion permission to survey. She added that 
subsequently, Dominion had filed suit against 58 county landowners and most if not all were 
intending to fight it in court. She added that FERC considered eminent domain an important 
factor and used it as a metric of acceptance. She noted that landowners could get 78% more 
money for their easement when they went to court.  
 
Ms. Salidis then noted that it was the law that alternative routes needed to be assessed and 
that it was important to push Dominion to do this. She reported that Dominion had given 
some cursory treatment to two (2) alternative routes using the right of ways of high voltage 
transmission lines and other pipelines. She advised that Dominion said that the terrain was 
too steep to go with ROWs having transmission lines; however this was not applicable to all 
parts of the route. She advised that they said they could not co-locate with the Columbia gas 
line because there was not enough room; however in the George Washington forest there 
was a 500 ft. right of way. She noted that they also noted they could not do this because the 
terrain was too steep; however Nelson County’s terrain was steep.  
 



January 13, 2015 
 

9 
 

Ms. Salidis then noted that concluded their presentation and Mr. Saunders thanked them for 
their efforts and for their presentation. 
 

C. Presentation – Solarize Nelson County Initiative (Tim Leroux-LEAP) 
(R2015-05) 

 
Mr. Tim Leroux of LEAP addressed the Board and introduced himself. He noted that LEAP 
was a small energy services nonprofit organization in Charlottesville, they intended to bring 
a Solarize program to Nelson County, and requested the Board’s support through passage of 
the resolution provided.  
 
He explained that the idea was that through public/private partnership, the cost of solar 
energy could be reduced to interested participants through bulk purchasing. He noted that 
they had conducted Solarize Charlottesville and were now doing Solarize Leesburg. He 
reported that the Charlottesville program had 1,800 people sign up that resulted in 93 
contracts and a $1.3 Million investment in the local community. He added that in Leesburg 
and Harrisonburg, they have had mixed results with 11 contracts and 50 contracts 
respectively. 
 
Mr. Leroux then noted that there was good potential in Nelson County, prices were better 
than they have ever been, and the return on investment was around 6%, with the systems 
paying for themselves in 6-8 years. He added that the program only used American made 
panels and local installers from Nelson and Waynesboro companies.  
 
Mr. Leroux then took questions from the Board as follows: 
 

 Ms. Brennan asked if they did assessments as part of the program and Mr. Leroux 
noted that potential participants signed up through the website and then they did a 
google earth view of the home site for sun exposure. They then did a free estimate if 
the property was suitable and put together a free proposal on the cost/benefits of 
solar.  

 
 Ms. Brennan asked if they did home energy analysis and Mr. Leroux replied that 

they can do it for free in Charlottesville because Dominion Power allows them to do 
it; however if it is outside of their territory, it is offered as a separate cost of $100 
and is outside of the solarize program.  
 

 Ms. Brennan asked if Government buildings were eligible and Mr. Leroux noted that 
solarizing residential structures was the intent of the program; however he could 
facilitate a conversation about this with the installers. 

 
Mr. Bruguiere then noted he was not sure why a resolution from the Board was needed and 
Mr. Carter explained that the resolution had been drafted at their request and it did not 
obligate the Board to anything. Mr. Leroux added that they could conduct the program 
without mention of the Board’s endorsement if that was their preference; however it was 
their intent to show a public/private partnership. 



January 13, 2015 
 

10 
 

 
Mr. Hale then noted that energy was an important issue for all and solar energy offered great 
promise. He added that the solarize program seemed to be very useful and the resolution 
gave homeowners the Board’s support. He read aloud the last statement “that the Nelson 
County Board of Supervisors does hereby proclaim its support for such efforts that assists its 
homeowners and urges the citizens of the county to consider whether or not solar is right for 
them.” He noted that it was a resource for citizens and thought that the endorsement was a 
good thing.  
 
Mr. Hale then moved to approve resolution R2015-05, Nelson County Board of Supervisors 
Endorsement of Solarize Nelson Initiative and Ms. Brennan seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Brennan then confirmed that the in the last “Whereas”, it should say “county” and not 
“country”. 
  
Mr. Saunders then asked if there was any liability for the County associated with endorsing 
the program and Mr. Carter noted he would think not.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere then noted he would like to have Mr. Leroux provide a chart that showed 
watts used and how many square feet of panels would be required to yield the same amount 
of energy supply. Mr. Leroux noted that this varied depending on panel angles etc. however 
he could send over some models. 
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (4-0) by roll call vote to 
approve the motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-05 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

ENDORSEMENT OF SOLARIZE NELSON INITIATIVE 
 
 
WHEREAS, Nelson County, Virginia has significant potential for solar energy; and 
  
WHEREAS, the cost of residential solar has dropped by more than 60% since the beginning 
of 2011; and 
  
WHEREAS, “Solarize” campaigns reduce prices for consumers further through the power 
of community bulk purchasing and have been conducted with great success around the 
country since 2011; and 
  
WHEREAS, local citizens, in conjunction with the nonprofit Local Energy Alliance 
Program (LEAP) desire to run a “Solarize Nelson” campaign utilizing local installers and 
American made photovoltaic solar systems; and 
  
WHEREAS, solar installations create jobs, increase county revenue, and are 
environmentally sound;  
  



January 13, 2015 
 

11 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Nelson County Board of Supervisors 
does hereby proclaim its support for such efforts that assists its homeowners and urges the 
citizens of the county to consider whether or not solar is right for them. 
 

D. VDOT Report 
I. VDOT Request to Abandon & Add Segments of Route 655, Roseland 

Road (R2015-06) 
 

Mr. Carter reported that Mr. Austin was not able be present to report or discuss the proposed 
VDOT request to abandon and add segments of Route 655, Roseland Road. He added that 
he had not had a chance to find out if the abandoned segment reverted back to the property 
owner or to VDOT for maintenance purposes. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted that he thought this was the area where the park and ride had been 
established and he supposed VDOT did not want to maintain this anymore.  
 
Supervisors then agreed by consensus to table this item until Mr. Austin was able to discuss 
it and no action was taken. 
 

 
VI. New Business/ Unfinished Business 

  
A. New Voting Equipment Request, Nelson County Electoral Board 

 
Ms. Jackie Britt, Registrar addressed the Board noting that the current voting equipment was 
old and out of date and that they had machines fail during testing and had repaired and used 
two spares that had been purchased from Leesburg. She added that the failures on Election 
Day had occurred in the Lovingston and Roseland districts and that Nelson was one of 47 
localities that had Election Day equipment problems. 
 
Ms. Britt then noted that in a press release, the Governor described his budget proposal to 
buy new equipment across the state; however the elections community was doubtful this 
would pass in the General Assembly. She added that now was the time to replace the 
equipment because there would be no time to do this in 2016. She reiterated that there was 
no guarantee the funds would be forthcoming from the General Assembly.  
 
Mr. Carter reiterated that the Governor made a recommendation to replace all of the 
equipment across the state; however it was indeterminate and if the County proceeded now, 
it may not realize a reimbursement. He further noted that it was a short General Assembly 
session and that what Ms. Britt proposed was that the County could work on procurement 
and then it would be known in a month and a half if the State would provide reimbursement 
and would be poised to move forward. He added that the cost was potentially $120,000. 
 
Ms. Britt noted that she and the Electoral Board recommended that vendors come and do 
demonstrations and that they be ready to decide. She then noted that they would like 
permission to proceed with this. She reported that the three quoting vendors could furnish 



January 13, 2015 
 

12 
 

the equipment within 30 days, 21 days, and 4-6 months if they proceeded now and did not 
wait until everyone was placing orders. She advised that there were currently three approved 
vendors right now and another vendor expected to be certified by February.  
 
Ms. Brennan stated that she thought the County should be proactive and get going on it now 
and Mr. Bruguiere agreed. 
 
Ms. Britt reiterated that the current equipment was past its useful life and they were using 
Windows 2000. She added that the new technology operated by digital optical scan and 
produced a paper trail.  
 
Mr. Carter noted to the Board that if the General Assembly fails to approve funding for this, 
and the Board wanted to go forward with it, staff was not concerned with the budgetary 
impact.  
 
Ms. Britt reiterated that she was primarily asking to start the procurement process and the 
Board agreed by consensus to allow her to proceed. 
 
Mr. Hale then noted that he thought the funds should come from the state. Ms. Britt advised 
that a problem with the Governor’s proposal was that the state was looking at using only one 
vendor who would have the whole state and the election community was worried about that. 
She added that there was concern that there would be a lack of fairness between larger and 
smaller localities that had problems to be resolved. 
 

B. Courthouse Project Phase II 
 
Mr. Saunders noted that the committee had met and asked Mr. Vernon to present the options 
discussed to the Board. Mr. Carter added that staff had prepared some financing scenarios 
refined by Ms. McCann since the past Friday to show how the project could work 
financially. 
 
Mr. Vernon briefly stepped through the evolution of the design process to date noting that 
they had begun with designing option A to create separated entrances to the Courtroom 
including a new public entrance, work would be done on all three levels, there would be new 
mechanical, electrical, and plumbing throughout, the tunnel would be extended from the 
new judicial center into the basement and a new inmate elevator would be installed. He 
noted that this design included new shell spaces in the basement. He noted that the design 
was sent to an estimator, TCT and this yielded a construction cost of $8,370,471 (CM fee 
excluded) and a total Project Cost of $10,002,712. 
 
Mr. Vernon then noted that the committee thought the estimator’s numbers were high and 
they were then vetted with some local HVAC companies for comparison. Upon their review, 
the HVAC/plumbing numbers were revised downward as were some of the allowances 
provided by the estimator.  He noted that this became Option B which included a total 
reduction of $734,760, a total revised construction cost of $7,124,373, and a total project 
cost of $8,513,625. 



January 13, 2015 
 

13 
 

 
Mr. Vernon explained that the committee thought the Option B costs were still high and 
directed him to design to a budget of $4.375 project cost - $3.6 M in construction costs and 
this became Option C. He explained that this option was limited to the minimum required 
for the Circuit Court and Clerk, had no north addition, no work on other floor levels, no 
extension of the inmate tunnel and had the inmate elevator shaft only, minimal finish 
improvements elsewhere, and the public entry to the Courtroom remained as is for a 
construction cost of $ 3,661,088 and total project cost of $ 4,375,000. Mr. Vernon then 
noted that there was no separation of court circulation paths and this design was 
immediately dismissed by the Committee as having too many design compromises. 
 
Mr. Vernon then noted that the Committee wanted to look at something that would meet a 
budget of $6 Million and Option D was devised. He note that this option included the same 
cost reductions in Option B and brought the main floor design back to its original state as in 
A&B that separated circulation and provided for expansion. He added that there was no shell 
space in the basement, it included the tunnel and elevator, Information Systems would be in 
the Old Board Room, and there was no work done on the east side of the main corridor. He 
then noted that the following options could be considered as add-ons:  
 
D-1.  No second floor for north addition/ no single metering/ existing spaces like new (all 
new finishes and MEP systems)  
 
D-2.  Second floor for north addition/ single metering/ existing spaces as they are 
 
D-3.  Second floor for north addition/ no single metering/ minimum improvements for           
          existing spaces    
 
Mr. Vernon noted that any one of these options would provide for a construction cost of  
$5,020,920 and a total project cost of $6,000,000. 
 
Mr. Vernon then noted that Mr. Carter had requested that they look at an option that would 
be between $7 Million and $9 Million and this became Option E. 
 
Mr. Vernon explained that Option E went back to the main floor plan in option A that 
everyone liked, that kept the desired separation and expansion. He noted that the second 
floor plan was similar to that in Option A, with a second floor on the north addition. He 
noted that there were no basement shell space; however it included the extended tunnel and 
inmate elevator and mechanical area but no other improvements. He noted that the single 
metering was also included and the direct cost reductions were the same as in Option B. He 
noted that in this scenario, the east side of the main hall remained the same. Mr. Vernon 
advised that they were holding $268,000 in project funds to take care of issues in the new 
courts building that was no longer needed because the issues had been addressed by Mr. 
Truslow and his staff.  He noted that for Option E, the construction cost was $6,039,768 and 
total project cost was $7,217,523 
 



January 13, 2015 
 

14 
 

It was then noted that the total project cost figures included 5% for Construction 
Contingency, 9.5% for A&E fees, and 5% for FF&E -0.195 of Construction Cost. 
 

Mr. Carter reported that Option E was presented to the Committee that past Friday and 
everyone liked it. Mr. Saunders added that it was the same as Option A; but without a lot of 
the unnecessary bells and whistles. 
 
Mr. Hale thanked Architectural Partners for working on the project and for taking their time 
in coming up with a solution to a complicated problem. He noted that he thought that the 
principle functions of local government were provided in the complex, with Option C not 
meeting their needs. He noted that Option E would meet the needs of the Government and 
Courts for at least a generation and there were options for the future. He added that Option E 
had flexibility that would be there without great expense and he noted that Judge Gamble 
was enthusiastic about the plan.  
 
Mr. Carter then noted that staff would be showing the Board how to use VRA financing, 
Fund Balance, and bridging the gap until other debt came off the books to pay for it. 
 
Ms. McCann then reviewed the following financing chart, focusing on the example related 
to a project cost of $7.5 Million (Option E): 
 
 
Nelson 
County 

       

VPFP Series 2015A Sample Schedule Summary  
(Spring 2015) 

    

Estimated Rates as of 
12/12/2014* 

      

VPFP Project 
Fund 

Equity 
Contribution 

Bridge 
Funding    
FY16-
FY20 

Term 
(yrs) 

Estimated 
True 
Interest 
Cost 

Estimated 
All-In 
True 
Interest 
Cost 

Average 
Annual 
Debt 
Service 

Additional 
Annual Cash 
Excess 
(Requirement) 
from Debt 
Decline-FY20 

                         
9,500,000  

                         
-    

          
1,829,246  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
758,977  

                        
(116,250) 

                         
9,500,000  

                         
-    

          
1,312,144  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
616,455  

                        
26,272  

                         
7,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

          
1,196,769  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                
599,030  

                        
43,697  

                         
7,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
883,036  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
486,672  

                        
156,055  

 Option B         
                         
8,500,000  

                         
-    

          
1,498,227  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
680,226  

                        
(37,499) 

                                                                                                        



January 13, 2015 
 

15 
 

8,500,000  -    1,101,308  20 2.60% 2.68% 552,951  89,776  
                         
6,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
941,472  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
519,020  

                        
123,707  

                         
6,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
665,898  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
421,729  

                        
220,998  

 Option E         
                         
7,500,000  

                         
-    

          
1,196,769  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
599,030  

                        
43,697  

                         
7,500,000  

                         
-    

             
883,036  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
486,672  

                        
156,055  

                         
5,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
685,749  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
440,146  

                        
202,581  

                         
5,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
498,148  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
357,792  

                        
284,935  

                         
6,500,000  

                         
-    

             
941,472  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
519,020  

                        
123,707  

                         
6,500,000  

                         
-    

             
665,898  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
421,729  

                        
220,998  

                         
4,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
470,060  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
360,120  

                        
282,607  

                         
4,500,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
386,708  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
292,739  

                        
349,988  

 Option D         
                         
6,000,000  

                         
-    

             
814,349  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
479,308  

                        
163,419  

                         
6,000,000  

                         
-    

             
569,376  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
389,382  

                        
253,345  

                         
4,000,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
389,226  

 
15 

 
2.31% 

 
2.42% 

                 
319,400  

                        
323,327  

                         
4,000,000  

          
2,000,000  

             
342,529  

 
20 

 
2.60% 

 
2.68% 

                 
259,559  

                        
383,168  

        
        
Current Debt 
Service  

 Available        

                      
332,287.00  

  
FY18  

      

                         
70,467.95  

  
FY19  

      

                      
239,971.88  

  
FY20  

      

                          
642,727  

 
Total 

      

 



January 13, 2015 
 

16 
 

Ms. McCann noted the above Current Debt Service and when it would come off of the 
books. She explained that the column labelled “Bridge Funding” showed the amount of 
money it would take to cover the debt service until the current debt service came off in 
FY16-20. 
 
Ms. McCann then reviewed each option related to the $7.5 Million example. She noted that 
the interest rates from VRA were in effect in December and were based on a spring 2015 
financing. Mr. Carter advised that staff had discussed the potential for doing a summer 
issuance and would work with VRA to determine which was best, spring or summer. He 
noted that going with the summer issuance would allow more time for finalizing the design 
etc.  He advised that the County could do a private issuance; however he thought VRA was 
the way to go. He added that Rural Development financing would require a historic review 
etc.  
 
Staff then clarified that the “bridge funding” would be local funds from fund balance and 
that Ms. McCann had broken this out by year as follows: 
 
Bridge Funding ($7.5 million project) By Year 
        
Term Project 

Fund 
FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 Total 

15 yr 7.5 million 134,881.19 599,976.58 265,445.07 196,466.19 0.00 1,196,769.03 
20 yr 7.5 million 155,655.74 487,685.06 153,819.51 85,875.54 0.00 883,035.85 
15 yr 5.5 million 100,353.30 440,146.44 107,859.44 37,391.49 0.00 685,750.67 
20 yr 5.5 million 114,851.20 357,792.14 25,505.14 0.00 0.00 498,148.48 
 
 
She explained that FY16 was not as big a hit because the County would be paying interest 
only and FY17 was the largest amount of bridge funding required. 
 
Ms. McCann then reviewed preliminary information on the General Fund balance and sixty 
day cash requirement as follows: 
 
General Fund Balance & FY16 Sixty Day Cash Requirement 
  
General Fund- Fund Balance  
Cash Balance 6/30/2014  $                     17,323,061.00  
FY15 Estimated Revenue (assumes budget amt)  $                     35,149,555.00  
Year Ending Balance utilized in FY15 budget  $                     (2,333,388.00) 
FY15 Estimated Expenditures  $                   (34,149,555.00) 
Carryover allocated in FY16 Budget  $                     (1,000,000.00) 
Estimated 60 day cash requirement for FY16  $                     (7,968,743.83) 
Available non-recurring fund balance   $                       7,020,929.17  



January 13, 2015 
 

17 
 

Ms. McCann advised that the chart assumed that recurring contingency would remain 
unspent and would be carried over to next fiscal year. Mr. Carter added that the balance after 
the sixty (60) day cash requirement would be the source of the $2 Million equity 
contribution to the project. 
 
Ms. McCann then noted the potential funds for Capital Projects (FY16) as follows: 
 
Potential Funds for Capital Projects (FY16) 
  
Estimated unexpended non-recurring contingency @ 6/30/2015 $350,000 
Courthouse Project Fund (estimated balance after Architectural Partner's 
initial contract) 

$600,000 

Capital Fund (after $300,500 allocation for TRE) $597,430 
General Fund Balance (Available after 60 day requirement) $7,020,929 
Total $8,568,359 
 
Staff then advised that if the Board wanted to put down $2 Million towards the project, they 
had the ability to do it. He added that the Capital Fund balances would be sufficient to cover 
the bridge funding or they could use carryover for this. Mr. Carter reiterated that staff was 
confident in the numbers presented thus far. 
 
Mr. Saunders noted that if they did Option E, the County would have space for the future, 
there would be enough Clerk's space, and the Court flow was fixed. 
 
Mr. Carter then advised that if the Board chose an option, the next step would be to 
negotiate with Architectural Partners on the design process and move forward with it. Mr. 
Saunders noted that the timing would be ideal for a spring construction start. 
 
Mr. Hale suggested that the Board go ahead with this and hold off on deciding on the 
financial aspect of it. He added that he wanted to move forward with Architectural Partners 
and authorize staff to negotiate with them. He added that he had confidence that they could 
make adjustments in design as they went forward; however overall it looked great to him. 
 
Mr. Hale then moved to authorize staff to proceed with negotiating the design contract on 
the Courthouse project for Option E.  
 
Ms. Brennan seconded the motion and there being no further discussion, Supervisors voted 
unanimously (4-0) by roll call vote to approve the motion.  
 
Mr. Hale noted that he knew Mr. Harvey had been anxious that they do this and he would be 
in favor of going forward. 
 
Ms. Judy Smythers, Circuit Court Clerk in attendance noted that Judge Gamble was very 
excited about it and she thanked the Board and Mr. Vernon for their work. She added that 
they had been fortunate that they had not had any security issues and the staff would be 



January 13, 2015 
 

18 
 

eternally grateful. She then noted that Judge Gamble would retire on February 27th and 
would serve as a substitute thereafter until a permanent Judge was appointed.   
 

VII. Reports, Appointments, Directives, and Correspondence 
 

A. Reports 
1. County Administrator’s Report 

 
1. Courthouse Project Phase II:  The Project Committee and staff met with Architectural 
Partners (Mr. J. Vernon) on 1-9 to review project options and related estimated project costs, 
including an additional option requested by staff between the $6.0 and $9.5 million 
estimates.  Staff also developed in conjunction with the VA Resources Authority a spread 
sheet of financing options from $6.0 to $9.5 million. The Project Committee on 1-9 
endorsed a project scope at $7.5 million with a financing plan to be decided.   
 
2. Broadband:  a) The NCBA will meet on 1-13 at 1 p.m. for the Authority’s regular 
session, which will include the Authority’s re-organizational meeting, public hearing on an 
amendment of the NCBA rate schedule (to eliminate connection discounts), input from Mr. 
Patrick on a proposed Authority definition of broadband and proposals to work on local and 
regional comprehensive broadband plans. b) The County’s application to VA-DHCD for 
Local Innovation Grant funding is still being reviewed by the Department.  c) High Top 
Towner – it is “understood” indirectly that SCS will now not proceed with locating on this 
facility 
 
3. BR Tunnel and BR Railway Trail Projects:  a) BRRT – K. Barber Construction has 
submitted material certification documents to VDOT, which once confirmed by the 
Department will enable the project to be closed out (final payment to KBC is being withheld 
pending this resolution).    a) BRT – Construction of Phase 1 is in progress.  The grant 
addendum for Phase 2’s completion in the amount of $405,994 was received on 12-5, has 
been executed and returned to the Department for signature and return to the County.   It is 
anticipated that Phase 2‘s bid solicitation will be issued by 4-15-15. An application for 
Phase 3 funding ($1.5 million) was submitted to VDOT on 10-31.  Negotiations with ROLC 
for purchase of the easement for the western trail and parking area were completed in 12-14 
and the easement deeds were closed (recorded) on 12-30 with ensuing notice to VDOT on 
completion of this project milestone. 
 
4.  Radio Project: The project is complete and the new radio system is in operation with 
staff and the project consultants working on punch list items. 
 
5. Lovingston Health Care Center:  No additional progress has been made on this subject. 
 
6.  Solid Waste –Region 2000 Service Authority:  The Authority’s application(s) to 
Campbell County for zoning approvals to enable the recently acquired Bennett Property to 
be developed for future waste disposal is meeting public resistance from adjacent property 
owners.  The County’s Planning Commission did not endorse the Authority’s permit 
applications and the Authority Board will consider the status of this subject at its regular 
meeting on 1-14. 



January 13, 2015 
 

19 
 

 
Mr. Carter noted that the value of the soils on the property equaled or exceeded the expense 
of the property. He added that the Authority would also sell a section of the property that 
contained a residence. Ms. Brennan asked what would happen to the areas where the soil 
was taken from and Mr. Carter noted that there would be some type of restorative effort; 
however he would have to find out. 
 
7. FY 15-16 Budget:  In development.  Initial meetings with School Division staff are in 
process. 
 
Mr. Carter added that County staff and School staff would be meeting the following week. 
 
8.  Personnel:  See Finance Department Report. 
 
Mr. Carter reported that the Part Time Finance position had been filled by Linda Lovern 
from Amherst. He noted that she had a degree from Virginia Tech and would work three 
days per week (24 hours) and would be located in the same office with Sara and Grace. He 
then noted that the County was recruiting for a Part Time Animal Control Officer and Full 
Time Dispatch position. 
 
9.  Department Reports:  Included with 1-13-15 BOS agenda. 
 

2. Board Reports 
 
Mr. Hale reported attending the Blue Ridge Tunnel monthly progress meeting where some 
issues were addressed and it was determined that the project would be delayed by the 
weather. He reported that the Tunnel Foundation had agreed to provide financing for a film 
to be done by the Wagners, and they had signed a contract and needed a check for this from 
the Foundation account.  Mr. Carter then advised that he had not heard from Waynesboro on 
matching funds and he was waiting it out a bit. Mr. Hale noted that he thought Waynesboro 
ought to help out. He added that he had met the Governor and had given him fliers on the 
tunnel and had invited him to visit. Mr. Carter noted that he had been emailing those who 
could help with National Landmark designation of the tunnel and invited them to tour the 
tunnel. He noted he had had also invited the President as he could make the designation. 
 
Ms. Brennan reported the following: 
 
1. Everything was going well at the Department of Social Services.  
 
2. No progress was being made with repurposing the Lovingston Healthcare Center once it’s 
vacated. She noted that she and Mr. Carter met with the Rosewood Village owner, who were 
planning a facility in Stoney Creek that would impact this effort. She added that she had 
spoken with the Branchlands Manager who had related the difficulties had in getting it 
going.  
 



January 13, 2015 
 

20 
 

3. Attended the VA Geographic Information Network meeting. She noted that they were 
doing a flyover for the western half of the state (we are in eastern half) and she noted that 
she wanted to speak to Ms. Rorrer about getting Lydar maps that were helpful in looking at 
topography. 
 
4. Attended a CIT Meeting. She noted that the meeting was attended by members of public 
safety, school resource, and mental health people. She noted that the CIT ensured that 
people get the mental health help they need. She noted that at the meetings, they discuss 
people in need that could be helped. She reported that they were working on two new 
projects: one was putting together information that could be given to someone on calling for 
help in a mental health crisis and the second was putting together cards to give to those who 
have mental health crises. She also noted a Louisa County grant that would provide money 
to care for the pets of those who have to be committed and this would be shared between the 
regional group members.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere reported that there was no Emergency Services Council meeting that month. 
 
Mr. Saunders reported the following:  
 
1. Attended Planning Commission meetings. 
2. Attended a tour of the Blue Ridge Tunnel. 
3. Attended Courthouse Committee meetings. 
4. Met with a few landowners affected by the Atlantic Coast Pipeline. 
 

B. Appointments   
 
Ms. McGarry noted that a master listing of the appointments to be made in 2015 had been 
provided to the Board and that most occurred in the second half of the year. She then noted 
that there were no appointments to be made that day as no applications had been submitted 
for the two current vacancies: the Local Board of Building Appeals and the East District seat 
on the Library Advisory Council. Ms. Brennan inquired as to the receipt of an application 
from someone she recommended for the Library Advisory Council and Ms. McGarry noted 
that none had been received to date. She added that both Ms. Harvey and Mr. Thompson in 
the Building Inspections Department were working on finding a replacement for Mr. Craig. 
 

C. Correspondence 
 
Ms. Brennan noted having received correspondence from Dominion on the pipeline. 
  

D. Directives 
 
Mr. Bruguiere and Mr. Saunders had no directives and Mr. Hale and Ms. Brennan provided 
the following: 
 
 
 



January 13, 2015 
 

21 
 

Mr. Hale: 
 
Mr. Hale noted the Green Earth Recycling correspondence and asked why there were two 
clothing bins at the Shipman collection site.  Staff noted that all of the bins were Green 
Earth recycling containers and they were paying the County $40 per month; however the 
current market had dried up.  Mr. Hale noted that he thought the bins should be labeled as to 
whose they were. 
 
Mr. Hale then inquired about the Solid Waste trucks and asked if the County was going to 
have two in operation and one spare. Mr. Carter noted that going into the budget, he 
understood that the County would buy a new truck and use the other one as a trade in. He 
advised that there was $90,000 in the current fiscal year budget and staff was ready to move 
forward upon a Board decision. He noted that the trade-in offer was $57,000 and if they 
bought a straight shift, there was enough budgeted; however the drivers now wanted an 
automatic, which would require another $8,000.  
 
Mr. Hale noted that he thought the newer truck was down and the County only had one 
operational truck. Mr. Carter advised that the older truck was in the shop for about a week. 
He noted that if there was a third truck kept at the transfer station, three of the four staff at 
the transfer station had CDLs and could drive it.  
 
Mr. Carter noted that the truck they wanted cost about $147,000 and he would package up 
the information for the Board’s next meeting.  Mr. Bruguiere stated that he thought if the 
County could get $47,000 to $57,000 for the trade-in, they should go with that. 
 
Mr. Carter then reported that he thought the 2009 trucks were lemons, however they were 
still in high demand. He added that the County got the first year of the production line and 
those trucks have had a lot of issues. He advised that one had already been traded in and the 
new one worked fabulously. He noted that Mr. Truslow was insistent that they did not need 
a third truck and Mr. Bruguiere agreed; noting it would sit there and that was the worst thing 
that could be done with a diesel. 
 
Members then agreed by consensus to discuss this further when Mr. Harvey was present. 
 
Mr. Hale then asked how citizens could find out about how to dispose of electronic waste. 
Mr. Carter noted that open timelines of when this could be brought in were offered and he 
would check on this. 
 
Mr. Hale then inquired as to what had been decided on replacing the two historical markers 
that were destroyed and he stated that the County ought to replace them. Mr. Carter noted 
that VDOT had reported that they would replace these if the Board paid for them; 
approximately $1,400 each and the Board had not yet made a decision. It was noted that 
these were the ones that were at the Nelson Wayside and at Colleen (Cabells). The Board 
then agreed by consensus to proceed with the historic marker replacement at the 
aforementioned locations. 
 



January 13, 2015 
 

22 
 

Mr. Hale then noted that the Broadband Authority Members were not being paid currently 
and it seemed to him that citizens that served on this Board should be remunerated the same 
as the Planning Commission and Industrial Development Authority etc. Staff noted that the 
bylaws would have to be checked and Mr. Hale noted that he thought this should be brought 
forward.  
 
Ms. Brennan: 
 
Ms. Brennan inquired as to any more information being received from the Commission of 
Revenue regarding the revenue received from LOCKN and staff replied that no further 
information had been received.  
 
Ms. Brennan directed staff to check in with Ms. Harper on the status of putting in a boat 
ramp at the Rockfish River at the Nelson Wayside. 
 
Ms. Brennan asked if the entryway lights were now turned off at night and Mr. Carter noted 
that they were set to turn off at midnight. He noted this was because of the conduct of night 
meetings.  He added that on weekends, staff would reprogram these to turn off at 5pm or 
6pm. He noted that these particular lights were programmed to be light sensitive to natural 
light. He reiterated that the input from Dispatchers was that they were turning off. 
 
Ms. Brennan inquired as to the status of the energy evaluation she requested and Mr. Carter 
reported that staff was working on this with Architectural Partners and Masters Engineering.  
 
Ms. Brennan then inquired as to the status on the options to increase revenues from the EMS 
revenue recovery program and Mr. Carter noted that ESMC had provided the County with 
three proposals to look at.  He added that staff needed to talk to the Treasurer as well to see 
if her office was an option in collection efforts. He noted that Mr. Payne had expressed an 
interest in it as well. 
 

VIII. Adjournment – Evening Session Has Been Cancelled 
 
At 5:45 pm, Ms. Brennan moved to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Hale seconded the motion. 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously by voice vote to approve 
the motion and the meeting adjourned. 
 



RESOLUTION R2015-09
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE REFUNDS 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the following refunds, as certified 
by the Nelson County Commissioner of Revenue and County Attorney pursuant to §58.1-3981 of 
the Code of Virginia, be and hereby are approved for payment. 

Amount  Category Payee 

$576.00  2014 RE Taxes Mr. John T. Bell 
P.O. Box 369  
Catharpin, VA 20143 

Approved:  February 10, 2015 Attest: ________________________, Clerk           
 Nelson County Board of Supervisors

III B





Agenda Item IV B – Presentation of FY14 Financial Audit Report, RFCA 

Due to its size, the FY14 Financial Audit Report is provided as a file attachment to 
the Agenda Packet. 

IV B



IV D1











1

Candy McGarry

From: Steve Carter
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 8:27 AM
To: Candy McGarry
Cc: Kessler, Jeffery B., P.E. (VDOT); Austin Sr., Donald L. (VDOT)
Subject: FW: Route 655 (Roseland Road) Realignment, Project 0151-062-112, C-501
Attachments: 151 062 112.C501_Page 3.pdf; Rte 151 PandR_Nelson Co..pdf

Candy, 
 
FYI for the 2‐10 BOS meeting. 
 
(Jeff – thanks so much for the follow up). 
 
Steve 
 
Stephen A. Carter 
Nelson County Administrator 
P. O. Box 336 
84 Courthouse Square 
Lovingston, VA  22949 
Ph. (434) 263‐7001 
Fx. (434) 263‐7004 
 

From: Kessler, Jeffery B., P.E. (VDOT) [mailto:JefferyB.Kessler@VDOT.Virginia.gov]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 4:57 PM 
To: Steve Carter 
Cc: Austin Sr., Donald L. (VDOT) 
Subject: Route 655 (Roseland Road) Realignment, Project 0151-062-112, C-501 
 
Steve, 
 
Thank you for your inquiry regarding the resulting status of the abandoned segments of Route 655 (Roseland Road) with 
regards to VDOT or private ownership and, if retained by VDOT, its ongoing maintenance.  Hopefully, this response will 
clarify the purpose of VDOT’s request and help answer your questions.   
 
VDOT’s requested action by the Board of Supervisors is to abandoned the old roadway alignment of Route 655 and add 
(recognize) the new alignment constructed as part of the Route 151 Tye River bridge replacement project.  The old 
(existing) right of way along the abandoned section of Route 655 will be retained and added with the new area 
purchased for relocating Route 655 to the north.  This total area comprised of both old and new right of way will remain 
under VDOT’s control and maintenance responsibilities.  Currently, most of the right of way along the requested 
abandonment section serves as a new VDOT Park and Ride facility. 
 
I have included a copy of the project plan sheet that shows the right of way limits along with a google earth photo of the 
Park & Ride facility. 
 
Please let me know if I may be of further assistance.  If Don is unable to attend the next Board of Supervisor’s meeting, I 
will be happy to attend and respond to any additional questions about this request. 
 



2

Thank you, 
Jeff 
 
 
Jeffery B. Kessler, P.E. 
Area Land Use Engineer 
VDOT - Lynchburg 
434.856.8293 
JefferyB.Kessler@VDOT.Virginia.gov 

 
 



sign File - c:\documents\cfms_looo/\l603~dI6039V6039003.dgn 

sIgn levels on • 1-49,52,55,57-63 

Ref.Flle - cMocuments\Cfms.Jocol\ref\d16039.dgn 

Levels On • 1-63 

JRVEYED BY __ -'- _. _______ _ ___ -

JPERVISED BY _ 8._L .... CjffMJf)tj/C C.4J4J ~'j,6-8250 
:SIGNED BY __ _ S£M (lR!t:!.N.£V-_(jJ41 E156·83f3 
NCHBURG DISTRICT DESIGN UNIT 

-x- __ _ 

o 

UTILITY OWNERSHIP 

VER/ZON ViRGINIA. INC. 
553 LEESVILLE RD. 
LYNCHBURG. VA 24502 

AMEFrICAN E.LECTRIC PO 
LYNCHBURG, VA 2450/ 

@® 
P. MASSIE SNlNDERS. JR. & 

JC1ICE H. SAlJNDE RS 
INST . ., 0/0001797 
TM ., 55-J.,-91-C 
56.245 ACRES 

BEG. PROJ. 0151-062-//2 C501 

BEG. PROJ. 0151-062-//2 RN201 
ST A. 100'75.69 

I 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

I 

\ I 

:r: 
f--
Cl 
0::: 
I---
() 
<: 
CJ 
() 

--.J "l CJ::: CJ::: 
~ « 

kJ "l --J « 
lcJ C\J Q, -J 

I--- § OJ Cl Q, 

l 0 
(Xj CL Cl 

'r '-0 
~ 

Q, 
'-0 

~ GJ 
~ 
~ 
-JJ 

DETAIL OF DRAIN DITCH REOD. 

d-Var. (4' MinJ 

Location 

LT. 

Station 

107-92 

C:t. 

2.6 

REFERENCES 
ENTRANCE DESCRIPTIONS 
EROSION & SILT AT/ON LEGEND 
PLAN LEGEND 
CONSTRUCTION PROFILES 
ENTRANCE PROF~ES 

UTlury LEGEND 

SHEET 2 
SHEET 2A 
SHEET 2A 
SHEET JA 
SHEET JA 

Denotes 10 foot Standard Proposed Permanent 
UtlIlty EasemefJt for VerlzofJ Virginia, Ire. 

FIgures In double brackets and dot-dosfed 
lInes dews Permanent Utlllty £oserrents. 

I 

I I 

\ \ 0 

© 
I--

~ (\' x VlU -J LJ --J -'-, CJ Q, <: "'-C () <: 
-J ~ OJ lcJ 0 $ <: lLJ ::::, ~ -J I--U Q, lLJ 

~ CJ o lUVl C I-- L!.. 
~ l--o lLJ lJ... <: CJ::: 

c:::! <: ~ Ct: 
UJ 

~ 

CJ ~ <: Cl 
Y lLJ i!S 0 
~ a:: 0 

O lLJ 8 :so 

U 
So 

-J lcJ 
- I <: 
l.w Q: $: 

~ 
l'J 

Ref. Ffle - c:\documents\cfms.JocoAref\dI6039J)Ot.dgn 

Levels On • 1-63 

0 

~ 
~ -J 
~ 

lLJ 3t m cc: 
o ~ 
\-- 5 

U 

o 
I 

I 
I I 
I I 

co 
i'-. 

~ \£J 
C\J 

~ I?i 
~ lD 

~ 
GO 

L:.: 

Ref. File - c:\documents\cfms _locoAref\sI6039du.dgn 

Levels On - 1-63 

-- , 
'0 __ " ~ (4IY ')'" 
~ -65 '-, 

~ 

I 

PROP.~EUP. CONSfR./·· ~('/~)- ....... - . ...... -

)
. EASEMENT FOR 1J() 

DETOUR 

lcJ lcJ 
-J lcJ >- I-

~ Q. <: Ct: Vl 
« c::: Cl :::> 
~ ~ 

'C 8 ~ ~ g C\J :r: -J 

~ b 
C\J C\J 

I I 
I I 

'I-' 
!~ I 

11<-;' 
I I 

, ::" 

'22/ 
: 0$L(h 
, , I:(J 
, I !::,) 

" " it. I , 

: 
I , 
I , , , 

I , 
I I 

...,ICl 
'1'1 0 
~cD 
U1) I 

"" I 
I I 

~ : 
I I 

I 

I BEG. SECT. B6IJ7 
ST A 108·12.00 

@ 
TAYLOR FARMS. LLC 

D.B. 437 PG.614 
P.B. B PG.l27 PLAT 

Ref.Flle - c:\documents'-cfms.JocoAref\s16039tc.dgn 

Levels On • 1-63 

Ref. Ffle - cMocuments\cfms.JocoAref\utI6039.dgn 

Levels On - 1-50/52-63 

DESIGN FEATURES RELATING TO CONSTRUCTION 
OR TO REGULATION AND CONTROL OF TRAFFIC 
MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AS DEEMED 
NECESSARY BY THE DEPARTMENT 

/ 
/ 

REVI SED 
0//28/03 
1// /9/03 

STATE FED ERAL AID 
PROJECT 

@ 

Ref. File - c,\documents\Cfms.Jocol\ref\hl6039.dgn 

Levels On • 1-63 

ROUTE 

/5/ 

STATE 
PROJECT 

0/5/-062-112. (?IN. 

0/5/-062-1/2. C' 
015/-062-112. B-, 

H. MALCOLM GILES. JR. 
D. B. 292 PG.30 § 

1 

/ 

/ 
/ 

CAUT/Oli! ""C'A' COMe -'>1 1'/ .,. PAD 

) Q 
: I,I1/l/ OllT --

Flw, 645.3458 

D. B. 27 PG. /48 PLAT ll: 
TM ·it 55-A-~n 

9/.02 ACRES 
C 
I I 
~ 

" C 

END PROJ.0151-062-//2.RN201 
STA//J·61.16 

END SECT. B6IJ7 
ST A. 109-82.00 

~ 

N46'50'32"E ~ 

(N!JJ'U(),E 2.51 

JAMES E 
n.B.243 

P.C./ PG. 
TM " , 

IA! 

~ 
r - - - - - 1/ ~ 

Joe 

rf!.,erlzon Verlzon 

fIBr] ~sg~ 1 
BEG. CONN. RTE. 655 I 

ST A JOOoI2.00 (' 

~ all ~iI 
~t~~ Q 

~r- 'Ii V \ PC H. MALCOLM GILES. JR. 
m-++~ ..... -f--t--- D. B. 292 PU.30 \ 

D. B. 27 PG. 148 PLAT 
Iv) Cl 

:..e
l 
~ I'-- ~ TM # 5S-A-93 

...... 9/.02 ACRES 

~ 

LANE Conn 65! 
PI.NO. 4 
PI - 30J-68.29 
DELTA - ,g52 
D - 00'0" 
T -167J2 
L - 3J/.29 
R - 95493 
PC - 302.-00.9 
PT - 305-32..2.; 
V -55 mph 
E - 8.007. 

SCALE 
I I 
o 50' 

PLAN NO. PROJECT FI LE NO. 

015/-062-1/2 

jefferyb.kessler
Oval

jefferyb.kessler
Line

jefferyb.kessler
Line

jefferyb.kessler
Oval

jefferyb.kessler
Oval





 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION R2015-06 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

VDOT REQUEST FOR ABANDONMENT AND ADDITION 
OF REALIGNED SEGMENT ON ROUTE 655 ROSELAND ROAD 

 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has constructed Roseland Road (Route 
655) on a new alignment under the completed project 0151-062-112, C-501, B-607, and 

WHEREAS, the project sketch dated January 5, 2015 and VDOT Form(s) AM-4.3, attached and 
incorporated herein as part of this resolution, defines adjustments required in the Secondary 
System of State highways as a result of construction, and 

WHEREAS, certain segment identified is ready to be accepted into the Secondary System of 
State Highways, and 

WHEREAS, the new road serves the same citizens as served by the portion of old road 
identified in the Form AM-4.3 and project sketch to be abandoned, which no longer serves a 
public need, and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  this board hereby requests the Virginia 
Department of Transportation to take the necessary action to abandon segment D-D1 identified 
on the incorporated Form AM-4.3 and attached project sketch dated January 5, 2015 as  a part of 
the Secondary System of State Highways, pursuant to §33.2-912, Code of Virginia, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation 
to add the segment E-D1 identified on the incorporated Form AM-4.3 to the Secondary System 
of State highways, pursuant to §33.2-705 of the Code of Virginia, for which sections this Board 
hereby guarantees the right of way to be clear and unrestricted, including any necessary 
easements for cuts, fills, and drainage, and 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution and incorporated forms 
be forwarded to the Virginia Department of Transportation’s Area Land Use Engineer. 

 

Adopted: January 13, 2015    Attest: ________________________, Clerk 
        Nelson County Board of Supervisors 



 

 

 

Recorded Vote       A Copy Teste: 

Moved By: _____      ________________________ 

Seconded By: ______      (Name), (title) 

Yeas: ____ 

Nays: ____ 



  prev | next

§ 33.2-912. (Effective October 1, 2014) Alternative procedure for abandonment of old highway or crossing to extent
of alteration.

The Commissioner of Highways may declare any highway in the secondary state highway system or any highway in
the secondary state highway system containing a highway-rail grade crossing abandoned when (i) it has been or is
altered and a new highway that serves the same users as the old highway is constructed as a replacement and
approved by the Commissioner of Highways or (ii) the Chief Engineer of the Department recommends that it is
appropriate in connection with the completion of a construction or maintenance project. The old highway or the
public crossing may be abandoned to the extent of such alteration, but no further, by the entry by the Commissioner
of Highways of such abandonment upon the records of the Department.

(Code 1950, § 33-76.12; 1950, p. 734; 1952, c. 127; 1970, c. 322, § 33.1-155; 2011, cc. 36, 152; 2014, c. 805.)

prev | next | new  search  | table of contents | home

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-911
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-913
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-913
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?141+ful+CHAP0805
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.1-155
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?111+ful+CHAP0152
http://leg1.state.va.us/000/src.htm
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?111+ful+CHAP0036
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-911
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+TOC
http://leg1.state.va.us/lis.htm


  prev | next

§ 33.2-705. (Effective October 1, 2014) Continuance of powers of county authorities; alternative procedure.

The local authorities shall continue to have the powers vested in them on June 20, 1932, for the establishment of
new highways in their respective counties, which shall, upon such establishment, become parts of the secondary
state highway system within such counties. They shall likewise have the power to alter or change the location of any
highway now in the secondary state highway system within such counties or that may hereafter become a part of the
secondary state highway system within such counties. The Commissioner of Highways shall be made a party to any
proceeding before the local authorities for the establishment of any such highway or for the alteration or change of
the location of any such highway. When any such board or commission appointed by the governing body of a
county to view a proposed highway or to alter or change the location of an existing highway shall award damages
for the right-of-way for the same, in either case to be paid in money, it may be paid by the governing body of the
county out of the general county levy funds. No expenditure by the Commonwealth shall be required upon any new
highway so established or any old road the location of which is altered or changed by the local authorities, except as
may be approved by the Commissioner of Highways. If the property sought to be taken is for the easement or right-
of-way, the plat shall reasonably indicate thereon any appurtenant right-of-way or easement for ingress and egress to
and from the principal easement or right-of-way being taken.

As an alternative to the method of establishing or relocating a highway provided in the preceding paragraph, the
Commissioner of Highways, by and with the approval of the Board and the governing body of a county, shall have
power and authority to make such changes in routes in, and additions to, the secondary state highway system as the
public safety or convenience may require.

The service of any process or notice in any such proceedings upon the district administrator of the Department
having the supervision of maintenance and construction of highways in any such county shall be termed sufficient
service on the Commissioner of Highways.

(Code 1950, § 33-141; 1950, p. 726; 1970, c. 322, § 33.1-229; 1980, c. 441; 1984, c. 198; 2013, cc. 585, 646; 2014,
c. 805.)

prev | next | new  search  | table of contents | home

http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?141+ful+CHAP0805
http://leg1.state.va.us/000/src.htm
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-706
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?131+ful+CHAP0646
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-704
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.1-229
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+TOC
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-704
http://leg1.state.va.us/lis.htm
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?131+ful+CHAP0585
http://leg1.state.va.us/cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.2-706


Stephen A. Carter

Nelson County Administrator

P.O. Box 336

Lovingston, Virginia 22949

January 27, 2015

Dear Mr. Carter,

I am writing to request that the County Board of Supervisors take the necessary action to abandon Rt.

641 at the end of Dutch Creek Lane on my property (TM 58 A 102A), to the end of my property (TM 58 A

96), close to the end of state maintenance on Eades Lane. Attached are maps to clarify the portion of

the road that I am requesting to be abandoned.

There are two intervening landowners that would be affected by this action, and I have assured them I

will continue to honor their needs for access to their properties, as I already do with respect to similar

non-public roads crossing my property. Copies of this letter have been sent to Paul Whitehead, Jr. (TM

58 A 104) and Billie Bridgewater, Trustee for the James C Bridgewater Trust (TM 58 A 97).

The section of the road at the end of Eades Lane was destroyed in 1969 by Hurricane Camille. However,

to my knowledge, the road was never discontinued or abandoned officially by VDOT. I have discussed

the road with Don Austin, the VDOT Residency Administrator, and explained to him my desire to have

the road abandoned rather than discontinued.

The road at the end of Dutch Creek Lane is used for logging and by hunters leasing the affected

properties. However, there is also significant traffic by people using this "public road" to access logging

roads on private property without permission. I wish to move the end of state maintenance for Dutch

Creek Lane to a spot that can be monitored and that will provide a sufficient turnaround for large trucks.

Beyond this proposed turnaround, VDOT currently maintains .2 miles of Rt. 641. I am willing to maintain

this portion of the road that crosses my property, but only if it is not a "public road."

If you are able to include this issue on the agenda for the February 10 BOSmeeting, I will be pleased to

attend and answer any questions the supervisors might have about the road and my reasons for wanting

it abandoned by VDOT.

s~~c.ereIY, 0

Gu~\).fn~~
Robert J. Mc4ain

3254 Dutch Creek Lane

Shipman, VA 22971

CC: Paul Whitehead, Jr; Billie Bridgewater; Don Austin, VDOT

IV D2



ited, and published by the Geological Survey

SGSand NOS/NOAA

Dy photogrammetric methods from aerial photographs
Field checked 1967

jection. 10,000-foot grid based on Virginia
stem, south zone. 1000-meter Universal Transverse
ticks, zone 17, shown in blue. 1927 North
tum. To place on the predicted North American
move the projection lines 10 meters south and
t as shown by dashed corner ticks

ed lines indicate selected fence and field lines where
'ble on aerial photographs. This information is unchecked

own in purple compiled in cooperation with Commonwealth
gencies from aerial photographs taken 1979 and other
his information not field checked. Map edited 1981

*M,N ~N

7' \ I
124MILS 1'20'

24MILS

UTM GRIO AND 1981 MAGNETIC NORTH
DECLINATION AT CENTER OF SHEET

I

..----=3
I
"2

SCALE

1000 0
E3 H H

1000 2000 30

1 .5
ES E3 E=3 E3 E3

CONTOUR INTE
NATIONAL GEODETIC VE

THIS MAP COMPLIES WITH NATIOI

FOR SALE BY U.S. GI
DENVER, COLORADO 80225,

AND VIRGINIA DIVISION OF MINERAL RESO
A FOLDER DESCRIBING TOPOGRAPHIC MAP<



BOUNDAjJ.Y RESURVEY OF
THE ANDREW ROBERTSON TRACT

DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 23 PAGE 415
LOCATED IN EADES HOLLOW

LOVINGSTON DISTRICT
NELSON COUNTY, VIRGINIA

JANUARY 13, 2014

SURVEYED FOR SUSAN EILEEN McSWAIN
AND ROBERT JARVIS McSWAIN

~

\
\
\
\
\
\

~

\
\

-,
'\.'\.

\~~

/
J~\ \O\->=-
S~o\
f" ~\

~\i\
.-> \9 \
\\
'\.'\.

'\. ~ APPROXIMATE

I<, END OF STATE
"" .....__MAINTENANCE
", ~ ROUTE 641

(1 MILE TO RTE. 29)

@ 132.76'

OLD \\
ROAD---\'\

(SEE NOTE 4) \ \
IRS

26.89 ACRES
TAX PARCEL #58-A-96
SUSAN EILEEN McSWAIN

& ROBERT JARVIS McSWAIN
INSTRUMENT #120001730



;-LANrED
a

D.S.
.27,~~(J
Z"T ~s"'9
4t5 ;' -<Ssr p~3$

,/





Board of Supervisors Manual 2015 
 

 
77 

MISCELLANEOUS  

Abandonment of Secondary Roads   
 
There are two circumstances for abandoning a road that is a part of the secondary system of state 
highways. 
 
1. When the Board of Supervisors decide that: 

 
(a) "No public necessity exists for the continuance of the secondary road as a public 

road" (i.e., lack of public use), or 
 
(b) "The safety and welfare of the public would be served best by abandoning the section 

of road." 
 
2. When a new road "which serves the same citizens as the old road" has been constructed to 

Department standards and accepted into the secondary system.  The abandonment is 
enacted by the Commissioner of Highways in relations to project related changes. 

 
The first circumstance requires the Board of Supervisors to announce its intent to abandon a road, 
including providing formal notice to the Commissioner, and posting of a Willingness Notice to hold 
a public hearing. 
 
Following a public hearing, assuming one is requested and properly held, the Board of Supervisors 
acts to either dismiss the abandonment or to abandon the road within a prescribed time frame. 
 
For roads that have only a prescriptive easement for right of way, a lawful abandonment, under 
either of the above circumstances, extinguishes the prescriptive easement and the road ceases to 
be a public road. 
 
For roads that have right of way dedicated to public use, abandonment has the effect of closing 
the road to public use, but interests in the real property dedicated for right of way may only be 
transferred by a separate conveyance; right of way dedicated to a county government may be 
conveyed by the county after the Commissioner certifies that the right of way is no longer 
necessary for transportation purposes; right of way dedicated to the Commonwealth may be 
conveyed only by the Department.  The conveyance of right of way may follow abandonment, but 
may not precede abandonment.  
 
If the intent is to cease VDOT maintenance and responsibility but retain public road status, 
discontinuance should be considered. 



1

Candy McGarry

From: Steve Carter
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 9:38 AM
To: Austin Sr., Donald L. (VDOT)
Cc: Allen Hale; Anna Birkner; Candy McGarry
Subject: FW: ariel drive schuyler

Don, 

Good morning.  Please see the email request below from Mr. Andrew Rich. 

Will you be so kind to review and provide the Department’s input on  Mr. Rich’s request to enable County staff to follow 
up with him? 

(Allen – FYI and Candy – please include this as for the 2‐10 BOS meeting – to refer to during VDOT Report). 

Thanks, 

Steve 

Stephen A. Carter 
Nelson County Administrator 
P. O. Box 336 
84 Courthouse Square 
Lovingston, VA  22949 
Ph. (434) 263‐7001 
Fx. (434) 263‐7004 

From: Anna Birkner  
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 9:32 AM 
To: Steve Carter 
Subject: FW: ariel drive schuyler 

Steve, 
I checked back in my e‐mails and see that Mr. Rich e‐mailed me on 11/30/14. I forwarded the e‐mail to you as well as 
the board on 12/1/14. I remember speaking with him on the phone and telling him the process which these sort of 
things get done (forward on to Board, Board deliberates and speaks to VDOT). My question is how to respond to Mr. 
Rich. I’m not sure if the Board discussed this or VDOT is aware. I did not want to forward it onto the board again if it had 
already been discussed.  

Thanks, 

Anna Birkner 
Nelson County Administrators Office 
Secretary III 
(434) 263-7003 

IV D3



2

 

From: Andrew Rich [mailto:andyrewstr@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 7:38 AM 
To: Anna Birkner; Anna Birkner; Anna Birkner 
Subject: ariel drive schuyler 
 
good morning i sent an e mail a few weeks ago about someone having a look at Ariel drive to see if it 
would be possible to have the hill that goes down black topped or something as it is sometimes just 
about un drive-able after a few trucks have gone up and down .it puts quite bad ruts in the gravel 
making it hard to get up and down  
      thank you very much andy rich 
 
 
Sent from my Sprint phone. 
 



V A





1

Candy McGarry

From: Angie Johnson
Sent: Friday, January 30, 2015 10:34 AM
To: Candy McGarry
Subject: RE: Wintergreen Fire Dept. Interest Free Loans

Wintergreen Fire Dept has a $0 loan amount.  The balance in the loan fund account is $ 446,201.40

Angela F. Johnson, Treasurer 
Nelson County 
84 Courthouse Sq 
PO Box 100 
Lovingston, VA 22949 
Phone:  434-263-7060 
Fax#:  434-263-7064 

Confidential & Proprietary:  
This e‐mail may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole use of the intended recipient.  Any view or 
distribution by others is strictly prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete 
all copies. Thank You 

From: Candy McGarry  
Sent: Friday, January 30, 2015 10:27 AM 
To: Angie Johnson 
Subject: Wintergreen Fire Dept. Interest Free Loans 

Hi Angie, 

When you have a chance, will you provide me with information regarding outstanding interest free loans on the 
books for Wintergreen Fire Dept. and the balance in the loan fund?   Thanks! 

Candy 

Candy McGarry 
Nelson County Administrator’s Office 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk 
PH: (434) 263-7002 
Fax: (434) 263-7004 



BYLA WS OF THE 
NELSON COUNTY BROADBAND AUTHORITY 

A VIRGINIA NONSTOCK CORPORATION 

ARTICLE I 
OFFICES 

The principal office of the Nelson County Broadband Authority (the "Authority") will be located 

at the office of the County Administrator, Nelson County, 84 Courthouse Square, Lovingston, 
Virginia 22949. The authority may have such other offices as the Authority Board (the 
"Authority Board") may determine from time to time. 

ARTICLE 2 
AUTHORITY BOARD 

The Authority Board will have five (5) members. 

The initial members of the Authority Board shall be the members of the Board of 
Supervisors, whose terms of office shall be concurrent. The tenns of office of the 
initial members will begin on the date the Certificate of Incorporation or Charter is 
issued by the State Corporation Commission and will continue for one (1) year. 

Henceforth, The Authority shall be comprised of five (5) members appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors and there shall be one (1) appointee from each election district. Each succeeding 
member appointed by the Board of Supervisors, shall serve from July 1 until four (4) years 

hence on June 30 when their term shall expire. Any person appointed to fill a vacancy shall 

serve the unexpired term of the member being replaced. Board members shall continue to sit 
beyond the expiration of their tenn until such time as their successor may be appointed; 
however, the successor's term shall not be extended by such delay. 

ARTICLE 3 
GENERAL POWERS AND MEETINGS 

3.1 GENERAL POWERS. The affairs of the Authority will be managed by the Authority 
Board, who will conduct its business in public meetings as provided by state law, the 

Authority's Articles of the Incorporation, and these Bylaws. 

3.2 REGULAR MEETINGS. At the Authority Board's first meeting, it will establish a time, 
place and location of its meetings. The members of the Authority Board may provide, by 

motion and recorded vote, the time and place for holding additional regular meetings. 

V B















           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-10 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REMUNERATION OF NELSON COUNTY  
BROADBAND AUTHORITY MEMBERS 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 3.7, Compensation of the adopted Bylaws of the Nelson County 
Broadband Authority prescribes that compensation of Authority members may be fixed 
from time to time by resolution of the Board of Supervisors, 
 
NOW THREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Nelson County Board of Supervisors 
does hereby set the compensation for Nelson County Broadband Authority Members at 
$____  per meeting and Members will be reimbursed for any actual expenses necessarily 
incurred in the performance of their duties.  
 
 
 
 
 
Approved: February 10, 2015 Attest:________________________, Clerk 

 Nelson County Board of Supervisors  



RESOLUTION R2015-11 
RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF NELSON COUNTY, 

VIRGINIA DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO REIMBURSE ITSELF 
FROM THE PROCEEDS OF ONE OR MORE TAX-EXEMPT 

FINANCINGS FOR CERTAIN EXPENDITURES MADE AND/OR TO BE 
MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
EXPANSION, RENOVATION AND EQUIPPING OF NELSON COUNTY 

COURTHOUSE FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, the County of Nelson (the “Issuer”) is a political subdivision organized 
and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has paid beginning no earlier than 60 days prior to the date of 
adoption of this resolution, and will pay, on and after the date hereof, certain expenditures 
(“Expenditures”) for the acquisition, construction, expansion, renovation and equipping of 
Nelson County Courthouse facilities and related administrative space and holding areas (the 
“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Issuer (the “Board”) has determined that 
those moneys previously advanced no earlier than 60 days prior to the date of adoption of this 
resolution and to be advanced on and after the date hereof to pay the Expenditures are available 
only for a temporary period and it is necessary to reimburse the Issuer for the Expenditures from 
the proceeds of one or more issues of tax-exempt bonds (the “Bonds”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   The Board hereby declares the Issuer’s intent to reimburse the Issuer 
with the proceeds of the Bonds for the Expenditures with respect to the Project made on and 
after the dates referenced above.  The Issuer reasonably expects on the date hereof that it will 
reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds of the Bonds. 

Section 2.   Each Expenditure was and will be either (a) of a type properly 
chargeable to capital account under general federal income tax principles (determined in each 
case as of the date of the Expenditures), (b) a cost of issuance with respect to the Bonds, (c) a 
nonrecurring item that is not customarily payable from current revenues, or (d) a grant to a party 
that is not related to or an agent of the Issuer so long as such grant does not impose any 
obligation or condition (directly or indirectly) to repay any amount to or for the benefit of the 

V C1



 

 

 

 
 

2

Issuer. 
 
 Section 3.  The maximum principal amount of the Bonds expected to be issued for the 
Project is $7,500,000. 
 
 Section 4.  The Issuer will make a reimbursement allocation, which is a written allocation 
by the Issuer that evidences the Issuer’s use of proceeds of the Bonds to reimburse an 
Expenditure, no later than 18 months after the later of the date on which the Expenditure is paid 
or the Project is placed in service or abandoned, but in no event more than three years after the 
date on which the Expenditure is paid.  The Issuer recognizes that exceptions are available for 
certain “preliminary expenditures,” costs of issuance, certain de minimis amounts, expenditures 
by “small issuers” (based on the year of issuance and not the year of expenditure) and 
expenditures for construction projects of at least 5 years. 
 
 Section 5.   This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 The members of the Board voted as follows: 
 
 Yes      No 
 
 
 
 
 
 Absent      Abstained 
 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ___ day of __________, 2015. 
 
 
       _______________________________       
       Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
       of Nelson County, Virginia 
 
Attested to: 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
of Nelson County, Virginia 
 



V C2





EXHIBIT “A” SCOPE OF WORK  

Mr. Stephen A. Carter      February 4, 2015 

County of Nelson Administrator  

P.O. Box 336  

Lovingston, VA 22949 

Reference: Exhibit “A” Architectural/ Engineering services for Preliminary Design, Final Design, 
Bidding or Negotiating, and Construction Services for Nelson County Courthouse, Lovingston, 
Virginia, Phase 2  

Dear Mr. Carter,  

We  are  pleased  to  submit  to  you  our  scope  of work  for  this  project. Our  understanding  is  that  Architectural 

Partners (Architect/ Engineer) will provide architectural and engineering design services for Phase 2 additions and 

alterations  to  the  Nelson  County  Courthouse  including  Preliminary  Design,  Final  Design,  Bidding  and/or 

Negotiating, and Construction Services.    A more complete description of the scope of work follows in this letter.   

Architectural Partners and  the County of Nelson have been very much  involved  in  the  tasks of  formulating  the 

scope of work and description of the tasks to be performed. It is with this information that we have been able to 

complete a design service proposal for your review and approval.   We  look forward to continuing our work with 

the  county  and  delivering  a  second  phase  of  restoration  and  improvements  for  this  historic  center  of  local 

government.      

This  document  comprises  Exhibit  “A,”  to  be  attached  to  the  County’s  contract  for  Architectural/  Engineering 

services, hereafter referred to as “the AGREEMENT.”     

Understanding of Project 

The  project  shall  consist  of  Additions  and  Alterations  to  the  existing  Nelson  County  Courthouse  complex  of 

connected buildings as depicted on the schematic drawings attached, labeled “Nelson County Courthouse Phase II, 

Option  E, Main  Floor,  Second  Floor,  Basement”  and  dated  12‐19‐2014.        It  is  acknowledged  that  these  are 

schematic drawings only, indicating scope and scale, still to be reviewed and subject to minor revisions based on 

further discussions with  the Owner and  the  inclusion of building systems components.     The drawings attached 

indicate the anticipated limits of construction.  Work added to the project outside these limits, unless required for 

tie‐in or revisions to the building’s mechanical, plumbing, electrical, telecommunications or fire alarm systems, will 

be considered an addition to this contract and subject to fees for Additional Services as defined in paragraph 2.1.2 

of the AGREEMENT.   

V C3



2 
 

 

Understanding of Services 

Services  to  be  provided  by  Architectural  Partners  and  its  sub‐consultants  are  defined  in  the  AGREEMENT  and 

amended as noted below.    

In reviewing the project base information and site, the following is assumed:    

 Neither  project  funding,  nor  other  jurisdictions  having  authority,  require  an  Environmental  Impact 
Statement.        If a requirement for this becomes known  in the course of providing services, Architectural 
Partners will prepare,  in  consultation with  the Owner,  such a  statement  in accordance with paragraph 
1.4.2 of the AGREEMENT.   

 Furnishing  the  services  of  special  consultants  for  asbestos,  lead  or  hazardous materials  surveys,  and 
services  related  to  the mitigation  or  removal  of  asbestos,  lead,  or  other  hazardous materials will  be 
considered an Additional Service in accordance with paragraph 2.1.5 of the AGREEMENT.     

 Attendance  at  Board  of  Supervisors’  Meetings  may  be  required  for  updating  the  Board  on  project 
progress.      

 No Erosion and Sediment Control plan will be required given that the land‐disturbing activity area for this 
project will be less than 10,000 square feet.   

 All construction permits will be obtained by the General Contractor.  

 The  additions  and  alterations will  be  designed  according  to  the  2012  Virginia  Construction  Code  and 
referenced ADAAG standards.     Areas outside of the limits of construction will not be altered or made to 
conform to current ADAAG or Virginia building code requirements.   

 Civil Engineering services are limited to partial site surveys for existing grades, existing building foundation 
investigations, geotechnical services, and benchmarked  floor elevations.       Other  than specifications  for 
restoring areas of disturbed ground cover, no landscaping design services are included in this scope.   

 Architectural/  Engineering  Design  services  are  to  include  the  following  Alternates  to  the  basic 
construction contract: 

1.  Add Alternate for single metering (up to 3 options)  
2.  Other Alternates the Architect may elect to include as required for cost control  
 

 The  Owner  will  assist  the  Architect  in  the  development  of  General  Conditions  for  the  construction 
contract.   

 Architectural  Partners  will  provide  Construction  services  for  up  to  fourteen  (14)  months  after  the 
commencement of construction.   

 The  Owner  will  budget  a  5%  contingency  for  unforeseen  conditions  based  on  the  selected  General 
Contractor’s schedule of values.     

 

Summary of scope.   

The  scope of work  to be provided by Architectural Partners  is defined  in  the AGREEMENT, with modifications, 
deletions, or additions listed below: 

 

1.2  Schematic Design Phase, Scope of Service 

  Delete this section in its entirety as these services have already been completed.   



3 
 

 

1.6.2  Add the following: 

The Architect shall provide forty‐two (42) visits to the site by the Architect and/or consulting Engineer over 
the  duration  of  the  Project  during  construction,  based  on  three  (3)  visits  per month  for  fourteen  (14) 
months.    If this limit is reached prior to the point of Substantial Completion for all phases of the Project, 
the Architect shall request approval of Additional Services for continued site visits.    

 

1.6.3  Add the following:  

The Architect shall provide two (2) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data  item, sample, or similar 
submittal of the Contractor.   If this limit is reached and additional reviews are requested or required, the 
Architect shall request approval of Additional Services for continued reviews.   

1.6.6  Add the following: 

The Architect shall provide (2) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion 
of  the Work  is  substantially  complete.   The Architect  shall provide  (1)  inspection  for any portion of  the 
Work  to  determine  final  completion.              If  these  limits  are  reached  and  additional  inspections  are 
requested  or  required,  the  Architect  shall  request  approval  of  Additional  Services  for  additional 
inspections.    

2.1.5   Delete the word “communications.”   

(Telecommunications/  data  systems  design  and  specifications  are  to  be  included  as  a  part  of  Basic   
Services under this Agreement.   Scope of this work will include connections and/or extensions of existing 
systems within any part of the existing building and up to five (5) feet beyond the building perimeter.)    

2.1.15  Add the following:   

Construction Phase services extended beyond fourteen (14) months from the date of Commencement of 
construction.      

7.6  Revise requirement (v) to read:   
 “professional  liability and errors and omissions  insurance with minimum  limits of $1,000,000 per claim 
and $2,000,000 policy aggregate…”   

 

Proposed Services Description  

The following services are to be provided as Basic Services under the AGREEMENT:   

Preliminary Design Phase Services 

1.  Services as described in the AGREEMENT, Section 1.3. 
2.  Measuring  overall  dimensions  and  specific  critical  dimensions  in  plan  and  elevation  on  site  to  verify 

existing conditions within the limits of construction as indicated on Phase 1 drawings. 
3.  Preparation of background plan and elevation drawings, indicating existing conditions, for distribution and 

use by all consultants to the Architect. 
4.  Site meetings as needed with the Architect’s Electrical Engineering Consultant to discuss and determine 

options  for single metering.     Review of  findings and  recommendation with County Administration and 
Information Services personnel.   

5.  Meetings  and  other  communication  as  required  with  Architect’s  consultants  and  Nelson  County 
Administration and Information Services personnel to review design options for the IT/ Data Center within 
the Phase 2 Project, and  to develop  initial outline  specifications  for  telecommunications/ data  systems 
jacks and cabling.  



4 
 

 

6.  Coordination with  the Virginia  Supreme Court  as  required  to define  telecommunications  requirements 
and connections.  

7.  Meetings and other  communication as  required  to  finalize  the  Second  floor  Schematic  Floor Plan, and 
specifically the location for Information Services Offices and School Administration personnel.    

8.  Initial review of Schematic Design drawings and code issues with the County’s Plan Reviewer.   
9.  Geotechnical and subsurface investigations and existing footing documentation.  
10.  Destructive and non‐destructive  investigations and  structural evaluation of existing Courtroom Balcony 

structure  
11.  Preliminary  meeting  with  County  Plans  Reviewer  to  confirm  and  review  Code  and  Life  Safety  plan 

strategies for compliance.   
12.  Inventory of Clerk of Circuit Court’s Records files/ cabinets/ office equipment  
13.  Review  of  Schematic  Floor  Plans  with  Judge  and  Clerk  of  Circuit  Court  to  discuss  design  specifics:  

dimensions, furnishings required, work stations, finishes, fire suppression systems, etc.   
14.  Meetings with the Nelson County Courthouse Design Committee as required. 
15.  Presentations to the Board of Supervisors reporting on Project progress as required.  
 
Deliverables:  
 
First Floor and Basement Preliminary Design Plans  
Second Floor Preliminary Design Plan with approved locations for the IT/ Data Center, Information Services Offices, 

and School Administration Personnel 
 

Structural Footing and Foundation Preliminary Design Plan  
Structural First Floor Framing Preliminary Design Plan 
Structural Second Floor Framing/ Roof Framing Design Plan  

 
HVAC Basement Preliminary Design Plan 
HVAC First Floor Preliminary Design Plan 
HVAC Second Floor Preliminary Design Plan  
 
Plumbing New Work Basement Preliminary Design Plan 
Plumbing New Work First Floor Preliminary Design Plan  
Plumbing New Work Second Floor Preliminary Design Plan  
 
Outline specification for telecommunications/ data systems jacks and cabling.  
Outline performance specification for fire suppression systems.   
 
Geotechnical and Existing Footing Investigative Reports from Civil Engineer  
  (3 borings within the footprints of proposed addition and 1 at proposed elevator location)  
 
Final Design Phase Services (Construction Documents) 

1.  Services as described in the AGREEMENT, Section 1.4. 
2.  Submittals of progress drawings and specifications to the County and Circuit Court for review, comments, 

and approval at the 50% and 95% stages of completion.   
3.  Coordination with County in developing The General Conditions section of the Project Manual. 
4.  Review of the Code Review Sheet and Life Safety Plans with the Nelson County Plans Reviewer at the 95% 

complete stage.  
5.  Coordination with the Judge and Clerk of Circuit Court for new Bench design and fixed spectator seating in 

Courtroom, new front counter at Clerk’s offices, and other built‐in casework  
6.  Coordination with the County as required regarding fixtures and furnishings to be procured and provided 

under other contracts.  



5 
 

 

7.  Coordination with  the County and Court as  required  to  finalize  finish  selections  (floors/ walls/  ceilings, 
trim, etc.).   Presentation of up to three (3) color schemes for review and approval to Design Committee. 

 
Deliverables: 
 
Architectural 

 Cover sheet  

 Code Review Sheet and Life Safety Plans for all levels 

 Phasing Plans 

 Selective Demolition Plans for all levels 

 Dimensioned Floor Plans for all levels 

 Finish Plans for all levels  

 Reflective Ceiling Plans for all levels  

 Roof Plan  

 Exterior Elevations  

 Building Cross Sections at each new Addition 

 Elevator Sections and Details 

 Ramp Sections and Railing Details 

 Wall Sections 

 Door/ Window Elevations and Details 

 Opening and Finish Schedules 

 Circuit Court built‐in casework plans, elevations, and details 

 Miscellaneous section details 

 Interior Elevations  

 Interior Signage as required by code, coordinated with existing signage design  

 Furnishings plan, as needed for utility  locations, and    in coordination with County’s selected Furnishings 
vendor  

 Project Manual including Front End Documents and Specifications  
 
Structural 

 Structural Legend, Notes and Details 

 Building footing and foundation plans for Additions and new Elevator shaft 

 First and Second Floor framing plans for new Additions 

 Roof Framing plans for new Additions  

 Framing reinforcement plan as required for Balcony  

 Concrete Sections and Details  

 Framing Sections and Details 

 Lintel Schedule, Section, and Details 

 Structures for MEP equipment as required  

 General Notes  

 Specifications  
 
Plumbing 

 Legend, Notes, and Abbreviations 

 Plumbing Phasing Plan  

 Demolitions plans for all levels 

 New Work plans for all levels 

 Hot & Cold Water plans for all levels, with riser diagrams  

 Sanitary and Vent plans for all levels with riser diagrams 

 Fire Protection plans for all levels 



6 
 

 

 Specifications   
 
Mechanical 

 Legends, Notes, and Abbreviations 

 Mechanical Phasing Plan 

 Demolition plans for all levels 

 New Work plans for all levels  

 HVAC Schedules 

 Specifications 
 
Electrical  

 Legend, Notes, and Abbreviations 

 Electrical Phasing Plan  

 Existing Conditions Plans for all levels 

 Lighting Reworked plans for all levels, including exterior building lighting 

 Lighting Fixture Schedule 

 Reworked Conditions Site Plan  

 Power Reworked plans for all levels 

 Mechanical Room Power Reworked plan  

 One Line Diagrams 

 Power Schedules 

 Fire Detection and Alarm Systems Reworked drawings 

 IT, overhead paging, secure intercom and electronic security outlet plans, as required  

 Specifications  
 
Telecommunications/ Data Cabling  

 Details and Specifications  
 
Bidding or Negotiating Phase 

1.  Services as described in the AGREEMENT, Section 1.5. 
 
Construction Phase  

1.  Services as described in the AGREEMENT, Section 1.6. 
2.  Organize and conduct a Pre‐construction meeting with the Owner’s Representative and selected General 

Contractor. 
3.  Review  phasing  requirements  with  the  General  Contractor  and  assist  the  General  Contractor  in  the 

preparation of a final Phasing Plan to be to reviewed, adjusted as required, and approved by the Owner.   
 

Compensation (Basic Services) 

For the Architect’s Services as described in this Exhibit and the AGREEMENT, compensation shall be a fixed fee of  
$ 573,775.00.   Billing for our services will be monthly according to the percentage of the work complete.    
 
Compensation (Additional Services)  

For Additional Services, as defined in Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, compensation shall be according to an agreed 

upon fixed fee,  or according to the Architect’s current hourly Wage Rate Schedule, as authorized by the Owner in 

writing prior to the commencement of such services.      



7 
 

 

Services Not Included  

Following are specific services which are expressly not included in the AGREEMENT, but which may be provided as 

Additional Services if authorized in writing by the Owner:   

 Stormwater computations 

 Topographic or Boundary Survey  

 Environmental surveys and delineations of any kind 

 Historic research 

 Architectural Renderings  

 Building models 

 Exhibit design  

 Environmental testing 

 Construction testing  

 Utility locating 

 Any other service not expressly outlined above 
 

AUTHORIZATION 

If this Agreement is satisfactory, please sign in the space provided below and return a signed original Agreement. 

Signature indicates a notice to proceed. 

Nelson County 

 

Printed Name:__________________________ Signature :  ______________________________   

Date:  __________________________ 

 

Thank you again for allowing us this opportunity to propose work with Nelson County.    

Sincerely, 

 

 

James J. Vernon  

Architect‐Project Manager      

             

cc:  Mark Smith, Principal, Architectural Partners       

END OF DOCUMENT 



1

Candy McGarry

From: Jim Vernon <jim@architecturalpartners.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 04, 2015 4:44 PM
To: Steve Carter
Cc: Candy McGarry
Subject: Nelson County Courthouse Phase 2 - Exhibit A 
Attachments: Exhibit A.doc

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Steve,  Good Afternoon, 
 
It’s taken me a little while to pull this exhibit together.       I’ve based it on the contract we had with Nelson County for 
the Blue Ridge Railway Trail.    No problem using the County’s AGREEMENT as the basis for the contract.   We all agree 
it’s well put together and  fairly written. 
 
All of Exhibit A is up for review and discussion.    We’ve been back and forth about the fee, but settled on a fixed fee for 
several reasons. 
 

 A fixed fee, once approved, is simple.     Sometimes if prices come in higher than expected, an A/E fee based on 
percentage of the cost becomes a sticky point because it also becomes higher than expected.   

 A fixed fee avoids the difficulty of defining “construction cost” which happens when you have a percentage fee, 
i.e.  Is the construction cost the base bid only?  Does it include the cost of add alternates?  Etc., etc.   

 A fixed fee, billed by percentage is easy to track.    The payment for each phase of services is what it is, and 
doesn’t change once the bids are received. 

 
Hopefully this makes sense and has some appeal. 
 
The fixed fee is based on 9.5% of our estimated construction cost of $6,039768.00    We’ve elaborated in Exhibit A on 
what this includes.   Some services which we are including which are not always standard are civil engineering (including 
geotechnical), communications cabling (through a consultant working for us), an increased number of site visits by our 
team (3 per month during construction), and whatever number of meetings with the Design Committee or Board of 
Supervisors are required.    
 
Based on RS MEANS, a typical A/E fee for a $5 million municipal building would be 7% for standard services.   For 
alterations, RS MEANS recommends that the fee be increased by 50% for the first $500,000 and then 25% for the project 
cost over $500,000,  resulting in a 12.25% fee.   Considering that we have completed schematic design services (typically 
15% of the A&E fee) this would reduce the fee to 10.4% (  12.25% ‐ 1.85%).      Bottom line is that we feel we are giving 
the County good value at 9.5% of the estimated cost– and we want to be transparent about our fee evaluation so that all 
are comfortable with it.    
 
A few questions we have which would be good to resolve: 
 
1.            The insurance coverage amounts as indicated before.   Will Nelson County accept our current limits?    
2.            Under 1.6.7 of the County’s AGREEMENT,  we’re wondering what is being asked for in terms of 

“certified”?    “As‐builts” are typically put together by the GC and checked by our office against our records, and 
then forwarded to the Owner.   No problem with scanning and putting them into electronic form.    Since we are 
not an on‐site representative, who “certifies”?      



2

3.            Exhibit “B” listed at the end of the County’s AGREEMENT – is this a copy of the County’s original RFP? 
4.            Similar Question, is Exhibit “A” our original proposal?  
 
Sorry for the long email at the end of the day.    This is big hurdle.    Conversation/ questions about any or all of the 
above welcome.    
 
Thanks,  Jim  
 
 
 

 



           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-12 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
FINAL ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
RELATED TO THE RENOVATION OF THE HISTORIC COURTHOUSE 

(COURTHOUSE PROJECT PHASE II) 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act, §2.2-4300 of the 
Code of Virginia, Competitive Negotiation Process, proposals for project RFP#2014-
NC01, Professional Architectural, Engineering and Planning Services Nelson County 
Courthouse Design and Construction Services were solicited and received on May 28, 
2014; with interviews of the top ranked firms conducted on July 11, 2014 and the 
contract for these services subsequently awarded to Architectural Partners, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Courthouse Project Phase II Committee has worked with Architectural 
Partners to develop a feasible preliminary design, and  
 
WHEREAS, on January 13, 2015, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors approved the 
preliminary design plan known as Option E and authorized staff to proceed with 
negotiating a contract with Architectural Partners for final design and construction 
administration services for a maximum total project cost of $7,500,000; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors, 
the County Administrator, Stephen A. Carter, is hereby authorized to execute a contract 
in the amount of $573,775.00 with Architectural Partners on behalf of Nelson County for 
final design and construction administration services related to Phase II of the Courthouse 
project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  _______________, 2015  Attest: ________________________, Clerk 
       Nelson County Board of Supervisors 

 



 



V D

















































V E





















FEBRUARY 10, 2015

(1) New Vacancies/Expiring Seats & New Applicants :

Board/Commission Term Expiring Term & Limit Y/N Incumbent Re-appointment Applicant (Order of Pref.)

Local Board of Building Code Appeals 6/30/2016 4 Years/No Limit *Clarence Craig N - Resigned None

* Resignation Letter Received November 19, 2014

(2) Existing Vacancies:

Board/Commission Terms Expired Term & Limit Y/N Number of Vacancies

Libarary Advisory Committee 6/30/2014 4Years/No Limit Nancy K. Kritzer - East N No Applications Received

VI B



Memo 

To: Board of Supervisors 

From: Candy McGarry, Deputy Clerk 

Date: January 30, 2015 

Re: Agenda Item V B1 -Boards and Commissions: Jefferson Area Disability Services Board 

A letter dated January 22, 2015 was received from the Thomas Jefferson Planning District 
Commission advising that the Jefferson Area Disability Services Board is being disbanded. They 
noted this was due to the state establishing another such Council called No Wrong Door (NWD) 
in response to the Federal initiative called Aging and Disability Resource Connections (ADRC).  

Per the state initiative, The Jefferson Area Board for Aging (JABA) has been designated as the 
lead agency and coordinator for the NWD Council and agency and organizational representatives 
on the former DSB have been invited to join the new NWD Council. The individual 
representatives will not be included in the new Council structure. The County’s individual 
representative, Mr. Jason Hatfield has been notified of these changes via courtesy copy of the 
attached TJPDC letter and a letter will be sent to him on behalf of the Board, thanking him for 
his exemplary service to the DSB.  

At the January 13th Board Meeting, Ms. Kelly Hughes, the new School Division Special 
Education Director was appointed as the County’s agency representative to the DSB. She has 
been apprised of the aforementioned changes and JABA has been given her contact information 
in order to coordinate her participation on the new NWD Council; which is presently in its 
developmental stages. I have requested that JABA provide me with the Council’s organizational 
details once they are established and these will be forwarded to the Board at that time. 

V B1





1

Candy McGarry

From: Marta Keane <MKeane@jabacares.org>
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 5:59 PM
To: Candy McGarry; Jessica Cifizzari
Cc: Billie Campbell; Hughes, Kelly; Steve Carter
Subject: RE: Disabilities Services Board and No Wrong Door

Thank you Candy.  We definitely will.  Thank you for having a great agency/ person to add when we get up and running!
 

Marta M. Keane 
Chief Executive Officer 
JABA (Jefferson Area Board for Aging) 
434-817-5238 
mkeane@jabacares.org 
 

From: Candy McGarry [mailto:CMcGarry@nelsoncounty.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 1:19 PM 
To: Marta Keane; Jessica Cifizzari 
Cc: Billie Campbell; Hughes, Kelly; Steve Carter 
Subject: RE: Disabilities Services Board and No Wrong Door 
 
Hi Marta and Jessica, 
 
Per Billie’s email below, I am forwarding you Kelly Hughes’s contact information for NWD Advisory Council purposes. Her 
email is kchughes@nelson.k12.va.us and her phone number is 434‐260‐7646 Ext. 1005.   Please keep me in the loop as 
far as providing me with the Advisory Council’s organizational information, i.e. bylaws, meeting dates, times, and 
location once all of that is ironed out.  Please let me know if you need anything else from me on this. Thanks so much! 
 
Best, 
 
Candy 

Candy McGarry 
Nelson County Administrator’s Office 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk 
PH: (434) 263-7002 
Fax: (434) 263-7004 
 

From: Billie Campbell [mailto:BCampbell@tjpdc.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 9:31 AM 
To: Candy McGarry 
Cc: Marta Keane (mkeane@jabacares.org); Jessica Cifizzari (JCifizzari@jabacares.org) 
Subject: RE: Disabilities Services Board and No Wrong Door 
 
Candy, 
 
I checked with JABA and they would be delighted to invite Kelly Hughes to be part of the No Wrong Door (NWD) 
Advisory Council, which is part of the Federal initiative called Aging and Disability Resource Connections (ADRC). JABA 



2

will be in touch with Kelly as they organize the Advisory Council. JABA will send out the initial invitations for the new 
Advisory Council. 
 
JABA had planned to hold this first meeting of the NWD Advisory Council on February 9, which had been scheduled as 
the next DSB meeting. JABA has decided to delay this first meeting to a later date, to allow more time to get organized 
around this new initiative. Please provide JABA with Kelly’s contact information for their use in following up. I’m copying 
Marta Keane and Jessica Cifizzari at JABA to ensure that you have their contact information. 
 
Thank you for your commitment to people with disabilities in Nelson County. 
Billie 
 
 

From: Candy McGarry [mailto:CMcGarry@nelsoncounty.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 11:40 AM 
To: Billie Campbell 
Subject: Disabilities Services Board and No Wrong Door 
 
Hi Billie, 
 
I received your letter regarding the Disabilities Services Board and No Wrong Door Advisory Council. I understand from 
the letter that the new NWD Advisory Council will include agency representatives but will not include individuals. At the 
Board’s January meeting, they appointed an agency representative to the DSB: her name is Kelly Hughes and she 
replaced Joe Bolling in the position of Director of Special Education for the Nelson County School system and agreed to 
serve, as he previously did, on the DSB.  Given this, I would like to confirm with you that she would be invited to serve on 
the new Council and to see what next steps are needed in order to provide her with the information she needs to begin 
serving her appointment.  Thanks so much for your help! 
 
Best, 
 
Candy 

Candy McGarry 
Nelson County Administrator’s Office 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk 
PH: (434) 263-7002 
Fax: (434) 263-7004 
 



Nelson County Electoral Board 
PO Box 292, Lovingston, Virginia 22949          434-263-4068 

David McBee, Chair; Don Bailey, Vice-Chair; Lynne S. Simpson, Secretary 

January 27, 2015 

Nelson County Board of Supervisors 
PO Box 336 
Lovingston, VA 22949 

Re: Lovingston precinct polling location 

Dear Honorable Members: 

One of the duties of the Nelson County Electoral Board is to ensure the adequacy of county polling 
places to service the needs of both primary and general elections.   

As the Board of Supervisors is aware, the Lovingston precinct is located in the Lovingston Firehouse. 
The parking lot/driveway has many potholes and is in need of some maintenance. The Electoral Board 
Budget is not sufficient to cover the needed repairs. 

The Electoral Board has been directed by East District Supervisor, Allen Hale to submit a request to the 
Board of Supervisors for assistance with repairs. Therefore we are seeking approval from the Board of 
Supervisors to fund the needed maintenance.   

Thank you very much for consideration of this matter. 

Respectfully, 

Lynne S. Simpson, Secretary 
Nelson County Electoral Board 

VI C1



FEBRUARY 10, 2015 BOS PUNCH LIST

Directives Member Status Progress/Comments

Directives from March 12, 2013

Relook at Ways of Doing Reassessments Including In-House C. Brennan In Process

Directives from February 11, 2014

Create Computer Interaction Between COR, Clerk, P&Z , and TR Offices T. Bruguiere Pending

Directives from November 13, 2014

Continue to CC Mr. Hale on E-mails with Woolpert A. Hale Ongoing

Check Into Getting a Boat Ramp at Nelson Wayside C. Brennan In Process Assigned to Emily Harper

Directives from December 9, 2014

Look at having an energy performance study done for the County C. Brennan Complete On 2/10/15 Agenda

Directives from January 13, 2015

Look into Having the Company Name on Clothing & Shoes Recycling Bins A. Hale In Process

Discuss the Solid Waste Roll-Off Truck Purchase With Full Board A. Hale Complete On 2/10/15 Agenda

Check On How Citizens Can Dispose of Electronic Waste A. Hale Complete SAC to Report on 2/10/15

Proceed With Historic Marker Replacement at Nelson Wayside and Colleen Consensus In Process

Bring Forward The Subject of Providing Payment to Broadband Authority Members A. Hale Complete On 2/10/15 Agenda

Follow  Up with E. Harper On The Status of Getting a Boat Ramp at Nelson Wayside C. Brennan Complete SAC to Report on 2/10/15

Follow Up on Collection Options For The EMS Revenue Recovery Program C. Brennan In Process See Attached Report

VI D



Nelson County Water Access Report 
1/28/15 
Emily Harper 
 
January 20, 2015: met with Rob Campbell, Upper James Outreach Coordinator of the James River 
Association and Conny Roussos to discuss possible access points on the Piney, Tye, & Rockfish Rivers. 
The following are JUST suggestions to be considered. Some of these are existing but not maintained & 
not public property.  
 
Tye River: Nash, Battery Hill, Cub Creek, Snugdale Lane, Tye River Park, Massie Saunders, VDOT area at 
56/151, Rose Mill Rd, “Farmer Brown’s”,  2 miles east on S Powell’s Isl Rd, Phenix Bridge, Rucker’s Run 
 
Piney River: Lowesville,  Rte 151, Rose Mill Rd or Old Rose Mill Rd 
 
Rockfish River:  South Fork‐ Elk Hill Church area, North Fork‐Greenfield Rd, Rte 6 at the confluence, Adial 
Rd Bridge, Wood’s Mill (Wayside), Laurel Rd Bridge, there are 2 dams near Schuyler that have to be 
portaged, Schuyler, Rockfish Crossing Rd Bridge, Howardsville 
 
James River: Norwood,  Existing ‐VDGIF on Buffalo Station Rd ( not well marked, crosses RR tracks, needs 
ramp), Wingina , Howardsville  Proposed ‐ Norwood 
 
Emily will contact the Price’s about the possibility of the County developing and maintaining the 
Rucker’s Run access on the Tye. This has been an unofficial access for many years. It is not a public 
access but is being treated by the public as such. With a long term lease or easement the County could 
develop and small parking area & suitable ramp.  Follow up: The Price’s are enthusiastic about discussing 
this with the County 
 
Rob will contact the Yagel’s who own the property on South Powells Island Rd known as “Farmer 
Brown’s” about use at the point. (Follow up – he has contacted them no report yet 
 
Rob will also contact VDOT about developing access at the Wood’s Mill Wayside. Follow up – Rob is in 
the process of contacting VDOT. He spoke with Bryan Pollard of VDGIF. There is not a grant round from 
VDGIF open at this time but we will be in contact & ready for the next round. VDGIF has requirements & 
plans on it’s website. 
 
VDOT had a public meeting about the bridge improvements at Lowesville. I sent them a request to 
provide access for canoe/kayak access next to the bridge. 
 
1//30/15: Met with Rob Campbell, Tom Eick & Conny Roussos to mark a large county map with potential 
access sites along the Piney, Tye, Rockfish & James Rivers. Andrew Crane supplied us with a large “rivers 
& roads” county map.  
 
 
 
 


	Agenda Summary February 10, 2015
	Agenda February 10, 2015
	II Resolution R2015-07 Recognition of Honorable J
	III A (1) Resolution R2015-08 Approval of Minutes
	III A (2) Draft Minutes January 13, 2015

	III B (1) Resolution R2015-09 COR Refunds
	III B (2) COR Refunds

	IV B (1)  FY14 Financial Audit Report
	IV D 1 (1) VDOT Request to Abandon & Add Segments of Route 655 Roseland Road
	IV D 2 (1) Abandonment Rt 641 Dutch Creek Ln to Eades Ln 1-27-2015
	IV D 2 (2) Route 641 Maps
	Att 1 - Rt 641 Eades Ln to Dutch Creek Ln
	Att 2 - TM 58 A 96 Eades Hollow
	Att 3 - TM 58 A 97 Bridgewater
	Att 4 - TM 58 A 102A Dutch Creek

	IV D 2 (3) Abandonment of Secondary Roads from VDOT BOSManual-2015

	IV D 3 (1) Ariel Drive Surface Treatment Request
	V A (1) EMSC Interest Free Loan Request-Wintergreen Fire Dept.
	V A (2) Interest Free Loan Fund Balance

	V B (1) Remuneration of NCBA Members - NCBA Adopted Bylaws
	V B (2) Remuneration of Other County Boards
	V B (3) Resolution R2015-10 Remuneration of NCBA Members

	V C1 (1) Resolution R2015-11 Reimbursement Resolution - courthouse renovation (V0125666)
	V C2 (1) 2015-02-05 Energy Audit Proposal
	V C3 (1) Architectural Partners Contract Scope of Work -Exhibit A
	V C3 (2) Jim Vernon Email re Nelson County Courthouse Phase 2 - Exhibit A
	V C3 (3) Resolution R2015-12 Authorization to Award and  Execute Contract -CH Phase II Final Design and Construction Admin

	V D (1) Dominion Request for Land Use Meeting with NC Staff
	V E (1) Solid Waste Roll-Off Truck Purchase
	VI B 1 Appointments
	VI B 1 (1) Summary Memo- Jefferson Area Services  Disabilities Board
	VI B 1 (2) TJPDC Letter re Jefferson Area Disability Services Board
	VI B 1 (3) Email Correspondence re DSB and NWD Council

	VI C1 (1) 01-2015 NCBE Request for Repairs at Lovingston Voting Precinct
	VI D (1) Directives -BOS Punch List February 2015
	VI D (2) NCPRD River Access Report 1 15




